15t ANNUAL REPORT

2021-22

RIVERIA COMMERCIAL
DEVELOPERS LIMITED

CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911
REGD. OFFICE: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place
Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi -
110021




CONTENTS

PARTICULARS

Company Information

Notice

Directors’ Report

Financial Statements
Independent Auditors’ Report
Balance Sheet

Statement of Profit & Loss

Cash Flow Statement
Statement of Changes in Equity

Noftes

DLF &

PAGE NO

1

2-8




DLF &

RIVERIA COMMERCIAL DEVELOPERS LIMITED
(CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911)

Company Information

Reference Information

Board of Directors
Registered Office Address

Mr. Amit Sharma

Director The Chanakya, Yashwant Place

(DIN: 08174210) Community Centre, Chanakyapuri,
New Delhi- 110021

Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta

Director Statutory Auditors

(DIN: 07951272)

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP,
Mr. Baljeet Singh Chartered Accountants
Director 2nd & 3rd Floor, Golf View Corporate
(DIN: 07156209) Tower-B, Sector -42, Sector Road,
Gurugram -122002, Haryana

Manager
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Mr. Gautam Handa
Alankit Assignments Limited
Regd. Off.: 205-208 Anarkali Complex,
Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi -
110055

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Ankur Maheshwari

Company Secretary

Ms. Shreyasi Srivastava




- L] - - - A
Riveria Commercial Developers Limited D‘.F‘m
11" Floor, Gateway Tower, AVAYA

DLF City, Phase-lll, Gurugram- 122 002

Haryana, India

Tel.: (+91-124) 456 8900

NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 15t ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF
THE MEMBERS OF RIVERIA COMMERCIAL DEVELOPERS LIMITED (‘THE COMPANY")
WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, 8t AUGUST 2022 AT 9.30 A.M. (IST) AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT THE CHANAKYA, YASHWANT PLACE
COMMUNITY CENTRE, CHANAKYAPURI, NEW DELHI - 110021 TO TRANSACT THE .
FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

RDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the
Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 together with
the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Amit Sharma (DIN: 08174210}, who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To re-appoint Statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s}, the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
rules made thereunder (including any statutory amendmenti(s),
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), S.R.
Balliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN 301003E/E300005), be
and are hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for
another term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of
15t Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 20th Annual General
Meeting, at such remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi - 110021, India
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and
is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it may, in
its absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient or desirable
including power to sub-delegate, in order to give effect to this

resolution.”
By order of the Board of Directors
For Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
0_};1
Shreyasi Srivastava
Date: 16.05.2022 Company Secretary
Place: Gurugram A590; 70V

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
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1)

NOTES:

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/
HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE
ENCLOSED PROXY FORM, IF INTENDED TO BE USED SHOULD REACH THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY DULY COMPLETED, STAMPED AND
SIGNED NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE
MEETING.

Keeping in view the requirements set-out in the Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act'), the Board of Directors has recommended re-appointment of S.R.
Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN 301003E/E300005) as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for another term of 5 (five) consecutive
years from the conclusion of 15th AGM till the conclusion of 20th AGM, at such
remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of Directors.

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Statutory Auditors, have consented to and confirmed
that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the limits specified under
Section 141(3)(g) of the Act. They have also confirmed that they are not
disqualified to be appointed as Statutory Auditors in terms of the provisions of
the proviso to Section 139(1), 141(2) and 141(3) of the Act and rules made
thereunder. The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set-out at ltem No.
3 of the Notice for approval by the members.

The details of Director seeking re-appointment, in terms of the Act (including
Secretarial Standard-2) are annexed hereto and form part of this Notice.

Relevant documents, if any and statutory registers will be open for inspection
at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days up to the date
of the AGM and will also be available for inspection at the AGM.

Corporate member intending to send its authorised representative(s) to
attend the meeting are requested to send a certified copy of Board
Resolution authorizing its representative to attend and vote on its behalf at
the AGM.

The Company, being a wholly-owned subsidiary of DLF Commercial
Developers Limited, route map of the venue of the meeting and prominent
landmark as per Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings have not been
provided.

. Members are requested to quote their DP ID - Client ID and email-id,

telephone/ mobile no. in all their correspondences.

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
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FORM NO. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

15t Annual General Meeting - Monday, 8th August 2022 at 9.30 A.M.

CIN: U74110DL2007PLC 158911
Name of the Company: Riveria Commercial Developers Limited

Registered Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre,
Chanakyapuri, New Delhi - 110021

Name of the Email id:

Member(s): Folio No./ Client Id*:

Registered Address: DP Id*:

I/ We, being the member(s) holding ................... Shares of the above-named

Company, hereby appoint

(1) | Name:
Address:
E-mail ID:
Signature:

or failing him/her;
(2} [ Name:

Address:

E-mail ID:
Signature:

or failing him/her;
(3) [ Name:

Address:

E-mail ID:
Signature:

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dlf.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com



‘Riveria Commercial Developers Limited X
11% Floor, Gateway Tower, D LF AVAVA

DLF City, Phase-ll, Gurugram- 122 002

Haryana, India

Tel.: (+91-124) 456 8900

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the
15" Annual General Meetfing of the Company to be held on Monday,
8th August 2022 at 9.30 A.M. at the registered office of the Company at
The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi
- 110021 ond at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution(s) as are
indicated below:

Resl. | Resolution(s) For# Against# | Abstained#
No.
1. Adoption of Audited Financial
Statement, Directors’ Report and
Auditors’ Report for the financial
year ended on 315t March 2022
2. Re-appointment of Mr.  Amit
Sharma (DIN: 08174210), who
refires by rotation
Sl Re-appointment  of  Statutory
Auditors and fixing their
remuneration
Signed this ....... DAy Ofusisasuuse 2022
AFFIX
Signature of member REVENUE
STAMP OF
Signature of Proxy holder (s) APPROPRIATE
VALUE
Notes:

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement the meeting.

2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in
the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

4) #This is only optional. Please put 'x' or ‘v’ in the appropriate column against the
resolution indicated in the Box. If you leave ‘For' or ‘Against’ or ‘Abstain' column blank
against the resolution, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/ she
deems appropriate.

5) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person,

if he/ she so desire.

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

15t Annual General Meeting - Monday, 8th August 2022 at 9:30 AM

1. | Full Name and Registered
Address of the Member
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

2.| Full Name of the Proxy
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

3.| DP ID - Client ID

4.| No. of Equity Share(s) held

I/ We, being the Registered Shareholder/ Proxy for the Registered Shareholder*
of the Company, hereby record my/ our presence at 15t Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 8 August 2022 at 9.30 A.M.
at the registered office of the Company at The Chanakya, Yashwant Place
Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi - 110021 and ot any
adjournment(s) thereof.

Member's/ Proxy's Signature

*Strike off whichever is not relevant

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
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Detdails of the Director seeking re-appointment at the AGM

Name: Mr. Amit Sharma

DIN: 08174210

| Age: 39 Years

Quualifications: Mr. Sharma has done bachelor’'s degree in

software system from Guru Gobind Singh
Indraprastha University and Post Graduate in
Business Management from International School
of Business and Media, Delhi.

Experience: Mr. Sharma has rich experience of more than
13 years in Operations of Mall Management.
Prior to joining the DLF Group, he had served at
HCL.

Terms and Conditions of | Director, liable to retire by rotation
Re-appointment:
Details of remuneration | N.A.
sought to be paid, if any:
Details of the | He has not drawn any remuneration from the
remuneration last drawn: | Company.

Date of first appointment | 6th July 2018

on the Board:
Shareholding in the | NIL
Company:
Relationship with other | NIL
Directors, Manager and
other KMP(s):

Number of Board | 6 out of 6
Meetings altended
during the financial year
2021-22:

Other Directorship(s): NIL
Committee Positions in | NIL
other companies:

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dlf.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 15" Annual Report on the
business and operations of the Company together with the audited
financial statement for the financial year ended 315t March 2022.

Financial Perfformance

The financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended

31t March 2022 is as under:

(X in lakh)

2021-22 2020-21
Totalincome 6,479.48 5.564.01
Total expenses 10,945.60 11,806.46
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items (4,466.12) (6,242.45)
and tax
Exceptional items (nef) - -
Profit/(loss) before tax (4,466.12) (6,242.45)
Less: Tax expenses - -
Profit/(loss) after tax (4,466.12) (6,242.45)
Other Comprehensive iIncome/(loss) 3.47 17.62 |
Total Comprehensive Income/{loss) (4,462.65) (6,224.83) %RM

Review of Operations

During the financial year 2021-22, total income has increased from
T 5564.01 Lakh (previous year) to T 6,479.48 Lakh (current year), it was
mainly due to increase in revenue from operations. The expenses of the
Company have decreased from ¥ 11,806.46 Lakh (previous year) to
T 10,945.60 Lakh (current year). The net loss (after tax) for the year stood at
T 4,466.12 Lakh (current year) as against T 6,242.45 Lakh {previous year).
The total comprehensive loss for the year was decreased from T 6,224.83
Lakh (previous year) to T 4,462.65 Lakh (current year). The basic and
diluted EPS for the financial year 2021-22 stood at (¥ 8,933.96) /- as
compared to (Z 12,486.62) /- in the previous year.

About the Chanakya: DLF Luxury Collection

The Chanakya is situated in the heart of Lutyens’ Delhi af the iconic
location of Yashwant Place Community Centre. Spread across 1,88,929
square feet, the three exquisite and meticulously designed floors of The
Chanakya has a 21,369 sq. ft. multi-cuisine restaurant called MKT offering

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dlf.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com
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the best dining experience in the city along with Foodhall’s Luxury edition.
There is a 3 screen PVR cinema equipped with the best in screening, audio
technology, all new gourmet healthy menu and a separate counter for
crispy fries and dim sums. The Chanakya houses some of the foremost
Indian and International luxury brands like Hermes, Chanel, Tiffany, Good
Earth, Ralph Lauren, Montblanc, Rolex, Girard Perregaux and Anita Dongre
-Grassroot among others. From world-class food and beverage offerings to
a state-of-the-art cinema, The Chanakya hosts the best of fashion,
gourmet and entertainment all under one roof in the heart of Delhi.

Operations & Future Outlook

The global economic situation exhibited steady recovery in the last year.
However, resurgence of the pandemic in certain geographies and the
prevailing geo-political tensions have impacted this recovery. The
increasing uncertainties and supply chain pressures have resulted in an
inflationary environment resulting in tightening of monetary policies by the
central banks across the globe. As per IMF reports, global growth is
projected to slow down from an estimated 6.1% in 2021 to 3.6% in 2022.

The Indian economy exhibited a strong recovery across 2021 and was one
of the key drivers of global economic recovery with a healthy growth rate.
However, due to adverse macroeconomic conditions and rising
inflationary trends, the growth in Indian economy may witness a slowdown
in the short-term.

Strong underlying economic fundamentals of the nation will reduce the
impact of this short-term turbulence in the long-term growth. Policies such
as production-linked incentives, promoting self-reliance and increased
infrastructure  spending  will enhance employment rate, income,
productivity and higher efficiency, thereby contributing to higher
economic growth.

As per the IMF reports, the GDP forecast for India has been slashed to 8.2%
for FY'23 from 9% earlier. The primary reason for the cut was attributed to
higher commodity prices. The Reserve Bank of India also raised the
benchmark repo rates by 40 bps. This hike will be passed by the lending
institutions to us thus taking up the interest cost and adversely impacting
profits.

The Company remains focused on upgrading its assets & technology to
ensure tenant safety and providing a safe and sustainable ecosystem for
all its stakeholders. It has taken several initiatives in terms of enhancing the
air quality and ventilation, supplemented by improvement in existing

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dif.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com
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operational practices like offering touchless navigation to enhance the
overall user experience.

The retail sector recovered swiftly after the stringent restrictions and
lockdowns caused by the pandemic. Effective vaccination rollout and
enhanced safety measures by the developers enabled the masses to
return fo retail complexes. Consumption and footfall trends exhibited
stfrong rebound during the year with international luxury segment exhibiting
the strongest recovery with sales surpassing pre-covid levels in certain
brands.

Dividend

Due to losses incurred during the financial year, your Board of Directors has
not recommended any dividend on shares.

Reserves
In view of the losses during the financial year under review, your Company
has not transferred any amount to General Reserve during the financial

year under review.

Material Changes and Commitment

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of your Company which have occurred between the end of the
financial year to which the financial statement relates and the date of this
Report.

Changes in the nature of Business

There has been no change in the nature of business during the financial
year under review.,

Share Capital

During the financial year under review, there were no changes in the share
capital of the Company.

Debentures

During the financial year under review, the Company has issued and
allotted 27,50,00,000 fully paid-up 0.01% Optionally Convertible Debentures
of 2 10/- each for cash at par aggregating to ¥ 2,75,00,00,000/- (Rupees

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dlf.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com
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Two Hundred and Seventy-Five Crore only) convertible into equal number
of equity shares ¥ 10/- each of the Company to DLF Commercial
Developers Limited, holding company by way of a private placement on
preferential basis.

Public Deposits

Your Company has neither invited nor accepted/ renewed any public
deposits during the financial year under review.

Holding Company

DLF Commercial Developers Limited, DLF Home Developers Limited and
DLF Limited continue to be the holding companies and Rajdhani
Investments & Agencies Private Limited is the ultimate holding company of
your Company.

Subsidiary(ies)/ Associate Company(ies)/ Joint Venture(s)

During the financial year ended 315t March 2022, your Company does not
have any subsidiary(ies)/ associate company(ies). Therefore, the provisions
of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') and the rules
made thereunder do not apply.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In terms of the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Act, your Directors confirm |
that-

(a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

(b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the
Company for that period;

(c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi ~ 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dif.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com
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(d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
and

(e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate
and operating effectively.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Qutigo

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and
foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as sfipulated under Section
134(3){m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, as amended, are given at Annexure-A hereto and form part of
this Report.

Secretarial Standards

During the ﬁnongol year under review, your Company has followed the
applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. $S-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of
the Board of Directors’ and '‘General Meetings' issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs.

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As on the date of this report, the Board comprises three Non-executive
Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors is in conformity with the
provisions of the Act.

During the financial year under review, Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua has resigned
from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. 31st July 2021.

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors had
appointed Mr. Balieet Singh (DIN: 07156209) as an Additional Director of
the Company w.e.f. 9 June 2021. Further, the shareholders at the Annual
General meeting held on 19th August 2021 confirmed his appointment as
Director, liable to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 152 of the Act and in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Amit Sharma
(DIN: 08174210), Director liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offered himself for re-appointment,

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dlf.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com
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The resolution seeking members’ approval for his re-appointment form part
of the Notice for convening Annual General Meeting.

A brief resume of the Director seeking re-appointment, along with other
details, as stipulated in the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, is
provided in the Notice for convening Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified under Section 164 of
the Act.

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on 22nd July 2021 has re-appointed of Mr. Gautam Handa as Manager
of the Company for a further period of five years w.e.f. 28th December
2021, without any remuneration. Further, the shareholders at the Annual
General meeting held on 19" August 2021 has also approved his re-
appointment as Manager.

Mr. Gautam Handa, Manager, Ms. Shreyasi Srivastava, Company Secretary
and Mr. Ankur Maheshwari, Chief Financial Officer, are the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company in terms of the provisions of the Act.

Board Meetings

During the financial year 2021-22, six board meetings were held on
9ih June, 5" July, 9 July, 22nd July, 25t October 2021 and 27t January
2022, the attendance of which is given as under:

S. | Name of the Directors Position No. of meeting(s)
No Held during | Attended
tenure

1. | Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta Director o) 6

2. | Mr. Baljeet Singh | Director 6 6
(w.e.f. 9 June 2021)

3. | Mr. Amit Sharma Director 6 6

4. | Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua (fill Director 4 4
30t July 2021)

The maximum interval between any two meetings was 133 days, which
was in compliance with the provisions of the Act read with the circular no.
08/2021 dated 3@ May 2021 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The
requisite quorum was present in all the meetings.

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dlf.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com
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Auditors and Auditors’ Report

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP [301003E/ E300005], Chartered Accountants were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for five
consecutive years starting from the conclusion of the 10" Annual General
Meeting (AGM) held on 26th September 2017 until the conclusion of the
15" AGM of the Company to be held during the current year 2022.
Accordingly, the existing Statutory Auditors are due for retirement at the
ensuing AGM. As per the provisions of Section 139 of the Act, an audit firm
can be re-appointed for a further period of five years.

Subject to the approval of the members of the Company, the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on 16th May 2022 has considered and
approved the re-appointment of S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from
the conclusion of ensuing AGM until the conclusion of the 20t AGM of the
Company to be held in year 2027.

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP have given their consent for the proposed
re-appointment.  They have further confimed that the said
re-appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under
Section 141(3)(g) of the Act and that they are not disqualified for
appointment.

The notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report
does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or
disclaimer.

The Emphasis of Matters given in the Auditors' Report on the financial
statement are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

Cost Records & Audit

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, maintenance of cost
records and appointment of Cost Auditor are not applicable to Company
for the financial year under review.

Secretarial Audit

DMK Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice was appointed as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct Secretarial Audit for the
financial year 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi —~ 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dlIf.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com
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ended 31t March 2022 is at Annexure-B. The said Report does not contain
any qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or disclaimer.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

During the financial year under review, the auditors have not reported any
instances of fraud committed by the Company, its officers or employees
under Section 143(12) of the Act.

Annual Return

In accordance with provisions of the Act, a copy of the Annual Return for
the financial year ended 315t March 2022 is available on the website of the
Company at www.thechanakya.com.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees, Securities and Investments

Particulars of loans, guarantees, securities and investments, if any, have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statement.

Transactions with related parties

The Company has adequate procedures for identification and monitoring
of related party(ies) and related party transactions. None of the
transactions with related parties fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of
the Act.

The Company's policy for related party transactions regulates the
transactions between the Company and its related parties. The policy
intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes
are in place for all transactions between the Company and its related
parties. Information on fransaction(s) with related party(ies) pursuant to
Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, are given in Form No. AOC-2 at
Annexure-C.

For details on related party transactions, members may refer to the notes
to the financial statement.

Annual Evaluation of the Board & Individual Directors

Your Company has in place criteria for Board evaluation and individual
Directors and such evaluation is done by the Board, pursuant to the Act
and the rules made thereunder.

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dlf.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com
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The Company believes that it is the collective effectiveness of the Board
that impacts the Company’s performance, as a whole. The Board
performance is assessed against the role and responsibilities of the Board
as provided in the Act. The parameters for Board performance evaluation
have been derived from the Board’s core role of frusteeship to protect and
enhance shareholders’ value as well as to fulfil expectations of other
stakeholders through strategic supervision of the Company. Individual
Directors are evaluated in the context of the role played by each Director
as a member of the Board at its meetings, in assisting the Board in realising
its role of strategic supervision of the functioning of the Company in pursuit
of its purpose and goals. While the Board evaluated its performance
against the laid down criteria, the evaluation of Directors was carried out
against the laid down parameters, anonymously in order to ensure
objectivity.

Risk Management

The Board of Directors has oversight in the areas of financial risks and
confrol and is also responsible to frame, implement and monitor the risk
management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Risks are identified
through a consistently applied methodology. The Company has put in
place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to
key business objectives.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have reported that the Company
has adeqguate internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

internal Financial Controls and Systems

Internal financial confrols are an integral part of the risk management
process addressing amongst others financial and non-financial risks. The
internal financial confrols are documented and augmented in the day-to-
day business processes. Assurance on the effectiveness of infernal financial
controls is obtained through management reviews, self-assessment,
continuous monitoring by functional experts as well as testing by the
Statutory/ Internal Auditor during the course of their audits.

The internal audit was entrusted to Grant Thornton Bharat LLP. The main
thrust of internal audit was to test and review controls, appraisal of risks and
business processes, besides benchmarking controls with the best industry
practices. Further, the Board of Directors monitors the adequacy and
effectiveness of your Company’s internal control framework. Significant
audit observations are followed-up and the actions taken were reported to
the Board of Directors.

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, india
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The Company’s internal control system is commensurate with the nature,
size and complexities of operations.

Significant and Material Orders passed by Regulators or Courts

There are no significant material orders passed by the regulators/ courts
which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its
future operations. During the financial year under review, neither any
application is made by the Company nor any proceeding is pending
against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

Policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment
| free workplace for every individual working in the Company through
various training, awareness and practices.

Your Company continues to follow a robust anti-sexual policy framed by
DLF Limited, holding company (‘DLF') on ‘Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace' in accordance
with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal} Act, 2013 (“POSH") and rules made thereunder.
Internal Complaints Committee has been set-up by DLF to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment at various workplaces in
accordance with POSH. The Committee constituted in compliance with
POSH ensures a free and fair enquiry process with clear timelines for
resolution. To build awareness in this area, the Company has been
conducting programmes on regular basis.

All employees of DLF including ifs subsidiaries (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The policy is gender
neutral.

During the financial year under review, no case was reported. The
Company continues to promote the cause of women colleagues, creating
awareness on women's safety/ related issues, celebrating important days
dedicated to women and organizing workshops on gender sensitivity.

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
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Accolades

During the year under review, your Company has been conferred with the
following prestigious awards:

1. The Restaurant ‘MKT' at The Chanakya had been conferred with ‘The
Best Casual Dining Restaurant’ at the ‘Times Food & Nightlife Awards
2021'.

2. “WELL Health-Safety Rating” at the “Infernatfional WELL Building
Institute”. The WELL re-certification from world's top certifying agency
reconfirms DLF's continuous & dedicated focus on Health & Safety.

3. “Sword of Honour Awards” by an independent jury appointed by the
British Safety Council.

Sword of Honouris the highest global award in the field of
Occupational Health & Safety, which is awarded to the best of
the best companies in the world, after they have achieved ‘Five Star
Rating’ in Occupational Health & Safety by the British Safety Council
(BSC).

Acknowledgement

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to all the
employees for their dedication and commitment. The hard work and
unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the Company to sustain
and further consolidate its position in the industry.

Your Company confinues fo occupy respectful stature among
stakeholders, most of all our valuable customers. Your Directors would like
to express their sincere appreciation for assistance and co-operation
received from the business partners, stakeholders, suppliers including
financial institutions, banks, Central and State Government authorities,
customers, tenants and other business associates. All of them have
extended their valuable and sustained support and encouragement
during the year under review. It will be the Company’'s endeavor to build
and nurture the strong links with its stakeholders.

The Directors regret the loss of lives due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
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The Board is deeply grateful and have immense respect for every person
who risked their life and safety to fight this pandemic.

The Directors appreciate and value the contribution made by every
member of the DLF family who remain dedicated to the Company during

this difficult time.

Date: 16.05.2022
Place: Gurugram

= .

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Riveria Co ercial Deyetopers Limited

Y rav Gupta
Director

y(/DIN: 079512;2)
W

Baljeet Singh Prashant
Director

(DIN: 07156209)
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ANNEXURE - 'A'

Parficulars required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation | NiL
of energy
(if) The steps taken by the Company for | NIL
utilizing alternate sources of energy
(iii) The capital investment on energy | NIL
conservation equipment

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(i) |The efforts made towards technology | NIL
absorption
(i) | The benefits derived like product | NIL
improvement, cost reduction, product
development orimport substitution ,
(i) |In  case of imported technology | NIL
(imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year): -

(a)the details of technology imported:
(b)the year of import:

(cjwhether the technology been fully
absorbed:

(d)if not fully absorbed, are as where
absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and | NIL
Development.

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A

DLF

(X in Lakh)
S. No. | Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
(i) The Foreign Exchange earned 143.76 20.32
in terms of actual inflows during @,’
the year; and
(i) | The Foreign Exchange outgo - 0.68
during the year in terms of
actual outflows.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Baljeet §ingh
Date: 16.05.2022 Director
Place: Gurugram (DIN: 07156209)

Director

WN: 0795127://@) /
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Annexure-B

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31,03.2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Cos npanies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
{:Ippmmmcnt and Remuneration of Managerial Per sonnel] Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
CIN: U74110DLZ0OG7PLCIS8911

The Chanakya,

Yashwant Place Community Centre,
Chankyapuri, New Delhi- 110021

Ve have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of anplicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Riveria Commercial
Developers Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretariai Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a re;’zs:)mbfe basis for evaluating the
torporate conducts/statutory compliances and express g our opinion thereon.

Hased on our verification of the Company’s 5. minute h()c)ks, f’n*‘ms and
| returns filed and other records maintained mpany and also the information
P ‘,vrd d by the Company, its officers, ag w authorized revresentatizes duri ng
the conduct of secretarial audit, we i‘}oreby zv;wx that in our opinion, the Company

ws, during the audit period con g the al yvear ended on March 31, 2027
Audit Period) complied with the Sféfiifui?()z"}, n ‘auf;'séox‘fs isted hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and comptinnce- mechanism in piace to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the t't:;:xc?:;‘!,,iz’\;? made hereinatier along with
Annexure - Lattached to this report:

i

{

We have examined the books, papers, minute bools, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the (‘omp;my for the financial vear ended on March 3 L, 2022
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the mides made thereundoer;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the legulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder:

(iti) The Securities Centraces (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCR, A’} and the rujes made
thereunder; (Notdpphcahle to the Company daring the Ald ermv\

31/36, Basement, Old Rajinder Nagar, New Delhi-110060 Telephone : 91-011’-42432721, 4243002? ‘
Mob. : 8871 ;31 5000, 9810480983 E-mail : deepak.kukreja @dmkassociates.in Website | www.dmkassociates.in
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment("FDI”), Overseas Direct
Investments ("ODI") and bxternal Commercial Borrowings{*ECB”); (No FDI and
ECB was taken and No ODI was made by the Company during the Audit
Period} :

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEB! Act’);

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015-(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period};

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018- (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021](Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities] Regulations, 2008 and the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021as
a-(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and
dealing with client-(Not applicable as the Company is not registered as
Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent);

i India (Delisting of Equity

Shares)Regulations, 2009 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021Not applicable to the

Company during the Audit Period);and
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(h) The Securities and FExchange Board of India [Buy-back of securities)
Regulations, 2018-(Not applicable to th Company during the Audit
Period};

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following

(i) Secretarial Standards on meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1} and on
Gen *a} Meeting (55-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

(ii)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock
Exchange(s), if applicable; (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards as mentioned above.

The Company has a multiplex-cum-entertainment commercial complex namely ‘The
Chanakya’ situated at Yashwant Place Commercial Complex, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi-
110021. As per the information provided and confirmed by the Company no sector
specific law is applicable on the Company.

Based on the information received and records maintained, we further report that;

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The Cha anges in the
comnﬂ“i*’on of the Board of Directors that took place during the period und er
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

2. Adequate notices of atleast seven days were given to all the directors to
schedule the Board Meetings along with agenda and detailed notes on
agendaother than those meetings which were held at shorter notice in
compliance with the provisions of the Act read with Secretarial Standard-1 and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting in compliance of the Act.

3. All decisions at Board Meetings are carried out with requisite majority and
recorded in the minutes of the Meetings. Further as informed, no dissent was
given by any director in respect of resolutions passed in the Board meetings.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

3
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We further report that during the Audit Period, the Company has not incurred any
specific event/ action that can have major bearing on the Company’s affairs in
pursuance of above referred taws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc, except
as follows:

» the members of the Company in their Extra Ordinai ry General Meeting
held on July 06, 2021 accorded their approval by way of Special
Resolution to offer, issue and allot on 27,50,00,0000.01% Optionally
(onve tible Debentures(OCD Series- 1/2021) of R10/- each aggregating

X2,75,00,00,000/- (Rupees T'wo Hundred Seventy Five Crores onlyjon
pl(‘f@]ﬁllt}&l basis to DLF Commercial Developers Limited, holdi ing
company (DCDL) against adjustment of Loan: and

* the Board of Directors in its Meeting held on July 09, 2021had allotted
the above mentioned 27,50,00,0000.01% Optionally  Conver Ub‘L
Debentures(OCD Series- 1/2021) of ¥10/- each fully paid up at pa
aggregating to 32,75,00,00,000/- (Rupws Two Hundred Seventy I ive
Crores onlyjto DCDL.

FOR DMK ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
Date: 16.05.2022
Place: New Delhi

e
UDIN: FO04140D000329828 i T
(DEEPAK KUKREJA)
FCS, LLB., ACIS (UK}, IP.
PARTNER
FCS 4140
C P 8265

Peer Review No.779/2020

Z0



D

C0OMPARARNY SECRETARI

ANNEXURE 1
To,
The Members,
Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
CINDU7A110DLZOCT7PLLISE91
The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre,
Chankyapuri, New Delhi- 110021

Sub: Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Lo Maintenance of secretarial vecord is the responsibility of

Company. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based

[

We have followed the audit practices and pr

5SS as were appropriate to obtain

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records,
We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis

our apinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of finuncial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the

complianee of laws, rules, and regulations and happening of events

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and , ruie
regulations, standards is the cf‘pommz!‘ty’ of the management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of the procedures on test basis.

6. tarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the

i o of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the went has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. As perthe information provided by the Company, there are no pending cases filed by or

1
t
against the company which will have material impact/ on the Company.

FOR DMK ASSQCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
Date : 16052022
Place: New Uem;
UDIN: FO04140D000329828

(DELPAh KUKREJA)
FCS, LLB., ACIS (UK}, 1P,
PARTNER
FCS 4140
P 8265
Peer Review No. 779/2020

31/36, Basement, Old Rajinder Nagar, New Delhi-110060 Telephone : 91-011-42432721
Mob. ; 9871315000, 9810480983 E-mail : deepak.kukreja@dmkassociates.in Website : www.dmkassociates.in
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Annexure-C

AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by
the Company with related parties referred 1o in sub section (1) of section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length transaction under
third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arms’ length
basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions enfered into during
the year ended 31st March 2022, which were not af arm'’s length basis.

2. Detdails of material contracts or arrangements or tfransactions at Arms’ length

basis:
(% in Lakh)
Name Nature of |Duration of | Salient terms of | Dates  of fransacti | Amount
(s) of the |contracts/arr |[contracts/ | the contracts or | Approval on paid as
related party | angements/tr |arrangem | arrangements or | by the amount advances, if
and nature of | ansactions ents/Trans | tfransactions Board, if any
Relationship actions including the | any
value, if
any:
DLF Power & | Availing/Ren | Financial | The related party | 27.01.2021 | 1,186.19 | NA
Services dering of | year fransactions were
Limited, services 2021-22 entered  during
fellow the financial year
subsidiary at arm’s length
company basis.
&
For and on hehalf of theBpard of Directors
of Riveria i
N2
y .
Baljeet Singh
Date: 16.05.2022 Director Director
Place: Gurugram (DIN: 07156209) WIN: 079512752) W

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Dethi — 110021, india
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el 1+91 124 681 6000

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Riveria Commercial Developers
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022. the Statement of
Profit and Loss. including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements.
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013. as
amended (“the Act”™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31,2022, its loss including other comprehensive income/(loss), its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind As financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(5As). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics®
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 50 of the Ind AS financial statements, which explains the unceriainties and
the management’s assessment of the financial impact related to CoVID-19 pandemic situation, for
which a definitive assessment of the impact in subsequent period is dependent on {uture economic
developments and circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Directors® report. but does not include the ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Chartered Accountants

Our opinion on the linancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. [I, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board ol Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind As financial statements that give a true and [air view of the
[inancial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act lor
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or 1o cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are also responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind As Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind As financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions ol users taken on the
basis of these Ind As financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise prolessional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks ol material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain
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audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override
ol internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section [43(3)(i) of the Act. we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to linancial statements in place and the operating elfectiveness of such
controls,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. I we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. il such disclosures are
inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease 1o continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind As financial statements,
including the disclosures. and whether the Ind AS [linancial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves lair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

o

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act. we give in the
“Annexure 17 a stalement on the matters specilied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Scetion 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best ol our
knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes ol our audit:

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kepl by the Company so
far as it appears [rom our examination of those books:
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement ol Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended:

(e) The matter described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph above. in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

() On the basis of the written representations received (rom the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board ol Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal [inancial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements and the operating efTectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 27 (o this report;

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2022;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and (o
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 46 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company Lo or in any other persons or entitics,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™). with the understanding. whether recorded in
writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall. whether. directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b) The management has represented that, to the best ol'its knowledge and belief. no lunds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign

=
or
&

entities (“l'unding Parties™). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
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otherwise. that the Company shall, whether. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneliciaries: and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 1o
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fi\ﬂj}egislralion Number: 301003E/E300005

. '“[(&.

per Amit Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN: 22501753AJBWEV9336

Place of Signature: Gurugram. Haryana
Date: May 16 .2022
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our report of even date

Re: Riveria Commercial Developers Limited (“the Company™).

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course ol audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we stale that:

(ia)A)

(i) (a)(B)

(i) (b)

(i) (c)

(i) (d)

(i) (e)

(ii) (a)

(ii) (b)

(iii) (a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing [ull particulars. including quantitative details and
situation of the property. plant and equipment.

The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verilied by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than land where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company. The
immavable properties comprise ol multiplex-cum-entertainment and commercial complex constructed on
land taken on lease for a period of thirty years as per Concession agreement entered with New Delhi
Municipal Corporation which is duly registered with the appropriate authority.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the year
ended March 31, 2022,

There arc no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification ol inventory during the year. In our opinion the
coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verilication.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess ol Rs. live crores in aggregate from
banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis ol security of current assets.
Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature ol loans. stood guarantee and
provided security to companies, firms. Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties as follows:

(Rs in Lacs)
Guarantees | Security Loans Advances in
nature of loans

Aggregale amount granted/ provided during the year
- Holding company - 52.500.00 = -
- Pellow Subsidiaries - - - -
- Joint Ventures - - - -

- Associales - - 3
- Others - - R S - - |
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect ol above cases

- Holding company - 52.500.00 - 2

- Subsidiaries s . b .
| - Joint Ventures " . L }

- Associates . . B A
= Others US| EOUREISTD. .| WESSIURSN. N WS S
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(iii) (b)

(iii) (¢)

(iii) (d)

(iii) (e)

(i) (0

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(vii) (b)

(viii)

During the year the investments made. guarantees provided, securily given and the terms and conditions
ol the grant ol all loans and advances in the nature of loans, investments and guarantees to companies,
lirms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companics, [irms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature ol loans granted to companies, [rms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties which had fallen due during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, cither repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement Lo report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not advanced loans to directors / to a Company in which the director is interested to
which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 apply and hence not commented upon. Loans,
investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor aceepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has nol specified the maintenance of cosl records under Section 148(1) ol the
Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services lax. provident fund, employees’ slate insurance, income-lax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs. duty of excise. value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According
to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months {rom the date they became payvable.

The dues of goods and services lax, provident fund, employees™ state insurance. income-tay, sales-tax.
service tax. duty of custom, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been deposited on
account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of Nature of dues Amount (Rs. | Amount Period to Forum where
Statue in Lacs) paid which the dispute is
under amount pending
protest, relates
(Rs in
Lacs)
New Delhi Non payment of 21.469.31 -1 2013-2013 10 | lonble Delhi
Municipal license fee 2016-2017 [High Court
Council, 1994

he Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction. previously unrecorded in the books ol
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the yvear. Accordingly.
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) ol the Order is not applicable to the Company .
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(i) (a)

(ix) (b)

(ix) (c)

(ix) (d)

(ix) (e)

(ix) (D)

(x) (a)

(x) (b)

(xi) (a)

(xi) (b)

(xi) (c)

(x11) (a)

(Niif)

(xiv)(a)

(NivT)

Loans amounting to Rs. 19.909.46 lacs are repayable on demand and terms and conditions for payment
of interest thereon have been stipulated. Such loans and interest thereon have not been demanded for
repayment during the relevant financial year. The Company did not have any other outstanding loans or
borrowings or interest thereon due to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to report
on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has used funds raised
on short-term basis in the form of borrowings including interest accrued thereon amounting to Rs.
3.526.88 lacs [or long-term purposes representing [unding lor current year losses.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, Accordingly. the requirement to
report on Clause 3(ix)([) ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way ol initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on c¢lause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Refer note 17A to the Ind AS financial statements, during the year Company has made private placement
ol optionally convertible debentures of Rs 27.500.00 lacs by adjustment/settlement of existing loan
(repayable on demand) taken from holding company in earlier years. Read with above, the Company has
complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the private
placement ol'optionally convertible debentures during the year. As the Company did not receive any funds
during the year on private placement of optionally convertible debentures, the reporting under the clause
3(x)(b) as to whether the funds raised by private placement have been used for the purpose for which
funds were raised has not been reported upon.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 ol the Companies Act, 2013 has been
[iled by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii) (a). (b). (¢) ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act. 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) ol the Order insofar as il refates to section 177
of the Act is not applicable to the Company

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature ol'its business.

Ihe internal audit reports ol the Company issued till the date of the audit report. Tor the period under audi
have been considered by us. 2
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(xv)

(xvi)(a)

(xvi)(b)

(xvi)(c)

(xvi)(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx) (a)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connecled with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable lo the Company.

The provisions ol section 45-1A ol the Reserve Bank ol India Act, 1934 (2 ol 1934) are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly.
the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part ol the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs 1,362.42 Lacs in the current year and amounting
to Rs, 3.132.24 Lacs in the immediately preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 39 to the Ind AS financial statements, the ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements. our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions and considering the Company s
current liabilities exceeds the current assets by Rs. 3.303.05 lacs, the Company has obtained the letter of
linancial support from the Holding Company. nothing has come to our attention. which causes us to
believe that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet. as and
when they [all due within a period of one year (rom the balance sheet date,

We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability ol the Company and our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities lalling due within a period ol one year [rom the balance sheel date. will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company is not required to transfer any fund as per provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act.
2013 in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility as the limits specilied under the said section are not
met. accordingly the requirement to report on clause 3(xx) ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLI®
Chartered Accountants

per .

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 16, 2022

1t Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN: 223501 733AIBWEV9336

reistration Number: 30 100315/E300005
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Annexure 2 to the independent Auditor’s report of even date on ihe Ind AS financial statements of Riveria
Commercial Developers Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Com panies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Riveria
Commercial Developers Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31. 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Respounsibility for Internal Finaneial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI™). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. as required under the Companices
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing. as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS linancial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness ol internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement ol the [inancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis lor our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Finanecial Controls with Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability ol financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference o Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets ol the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary Lo permit
preparation ol financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of the company's assels that could have a material effect on the
[nancial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to AS Financial Statements

Because ol the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference 1o Ind AS linancial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS [inancial statements to [uture periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, adequate internal linancial controls with reference to
Ind AS financial statements and such internal linancial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31. 2022. based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAL

For S.IR. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300003

(’
\
per Amit Yadav
Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN: 22501 753AJBWEV9336

Place ol Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 16, 2022
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Riverin Commercinl Developers Limited
Halznce Sheet as 8t March 31, 2022
LAl ameaunts in ¥ lncs, unless otherwive stated)

Noles Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2022 Mavrch 31, 20621
ASBETS
Noo-current gasety
Property, plant and equipment 4 6,139.26 6,786 U7
Investment property % 24,034.01 25.590.37
Right-ofiuse assets 48 19,800 |7 20,748 00
Financial asdets
Othver financrt assets € Gl Ag Gl 48
Defemed tax asset (net) 7 - 5
Noan-current tax assets (net) & 24121 38825
Other non-curment asssts G 215 415
Tatal noo-curreat assals 50,360.30 55.576.32
Carrent asets
Inventones i Ba3z 8998
Financinl assets
Trade recervables t 431.20 27807
Cash and cash equivalents 12 1,893,310 264 98
Gther banl balances 13 417 30 1,070.37
Orther financial assews 14 43067 51782
Other curren! assets 13 260,76 147 48
Total comrent gesets 3,553,56 2,368.70
TOTAL ASSETS 53,853.86 55,547.02
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equily
Equity share capital 16 500 500
Other equity 17 761217 (15.425.18)
Total equity 7,617.17 (15,420.18)
Nog-current liabilities
Financinl linkilities
Borrowings 18 2258317 48 B41.15
Lease liabilives 20 16,245.54 15,885.55
Other financual linbilities m 43241 440381
Long-term provitions 2 I8 EG s}
Other non-current kabilities i 7950 19097
Total non-current Habilities 39,330.08 65,395.76
Carreat [abilities
Finaneinl lubilities
Barrowings 0 1,803 00 103.00
Lesse linbilittes ¥:2.] 45934 409,66
Trads payables e
- Dugs of micro prises and small pri 30,96 1819
~ Dues of creditors ollicr than micro enterprises und small gnterprises 1,007 38 s8B72
Other Bnancual habilities 25 325742 459332
Shor-term provistons ] 0.62 062
Other current hiabilities & 257.39 25793
Taotal current linbihities 6,856.61 597144
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 53,853.86 s_s.'sa.nz
Summary of significant sccounting policies 2

The sccompanyiag noles form an integral part of these financinl stntemeats

As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Bourd! bf Directors of
Chartered Accountants Riveris Conmerci wpers Limited

ICAT Firm Rbgistration Number 301003E/EI00005

/’j/ - Le
Yadav Baljeet Siagh Prusheat Gaurav Gupta
Lhirocine LVV pr Director i
DIN 07156000 o

Ankur Maheahwir

Chiel Frinameml Offiver Cumpany Seaetury
MNG  ASODLT

Pluce : Gurugram Pluee : Gurggmm &
Date : May 16, 2022 Bate : May 16, 2027 |




Riveriz Commercial Developers Limited
Statement of Profit and Less for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
(Al amounts in T lecs, anless ptherwise siated)

Notes

Revenue
Revenue from operations 29
Other income 30
Total income
Expenses
Cost of foods, beverages and consumables 31
Cost of services 32
Employee benefits expense i3
Depreciation and amortization expense 34
Finance costs 35
Other expenses 36
Total expenses
Loss before tax
Tax expense:

- Current 1mx

- Deferred tax 37
Loss for the year after tax
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified 1o profit and loss in subsequent periods

Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan (zratuity)
Income tax effect on above

Total Comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share [Face value per share ¢ 10 {March 31, 2021 2 10})] 38
Basic eamings per equity share (3}
Diluted earnings per equity share ()
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S,R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm|Registration Number. 301003E/E300005

per Ankt Yadav
Partner

Membershup Mumber, 301753

Place : Gurugram
Date : May |16 2122

Far the year ended

For the year eaded

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
6407 73 534307
7175 220 94
6,479.48 5,564.01
51987 379 50
1.432.91 133359
40167 342.82
3,103.70 311921
4471.75 5.694.04
1.015.70 937.30
10,945.60 11,806.46
{4,466.12) (6:242.45)
(4,466.12) (6,242.45)
3.47 17.62
(4,462.63) (6.224.83)
(8,933.96) (12,486.62)
(8,933.96) (12,486.62)

For and on behalf of Board of Direetors of

Riveria Commerci

Baljeet Singh
Director (A
DIN 07136209

Ankur Mabeshwari
Chiet’ Fimancial Officer

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 16, 3022

WEAay

Developers Limited

Prashant Gauorav Gupta
Director
DIN. 07951272
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Company Secrelary
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Cash Flow Siatement for the vear ended March 31, 2022
{All amousty in € lacs, unicss oterwize suted)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A, Cash flows from operating activities
Less before tax as per statemaent of profit and loss {4,466,12) 16.242.45)
Adjustment for
Depreciation 3,103.70 3192
Fimance cost (including IND AS adjustment of security deposit) 442335 565035
Financial liability measured 2t amortised cost (refer note 29) (166.07) (91.63}
Impact of rental straight-lining (refer note 29) 6115 (320.93)
Provigion for doubrful receivables and advances 189.97 300.95
Adjustment in investmen! proparty 86.23 -
Interest income (27.89) (29.08)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 3.204.32 238652
Adjustment for change in working capital :
Increase/{decreusc) i trade recetvables (343,100 (240.79)
Diecrease in inventony 5.66 21.65
Increase/{ Decrease) in rade payables 431 45 (135.87)
increase in financiaf assets (loan) - 1,68
Drecrease in other asscts {111.63) 4327
Decrease’ [Increase) in other financial labilities (180 3D 174 59
Increase in provisions 5.08 13,51
Increase/{decrease) in other habiliies 54.57 79.38
Net cash flow from oporations 3,066.00 234624
Income tax paid (net of Refund) 145.02 63.84
Net cash flow from operating Activity (A) 321102 2,410.08
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investmeni property and fixed assets {7T1.65) (10231)
Movement in fixed deposits (net) 643.07 (507.32)
Interest received 27.89 2908
MNet cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) 593.31 (580.55)
. Cash flows from Rmancing activities
Intersst pand {4.676.00) (4.537.91)
Bomowings received (net)” 2,500,00 7,074.00
Repayment of borrowings® - (4.118.00)
Net cash used in financing activities {C) {2.176.00) {1,581.91)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivaleats {A+B+C) 1.628.33 247.62
Cash and cash equivalents st bepinning of the vear 264,58 17.36
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year {refer note 12) 1,893.31 264.98

*Excludes issue of 00125 Optionally Cenvertible Debenturss of 2 27,500.00 lacs by way of adjustment of sxisting unsecured loan (repayable on
demand) taken in earlier years (olso refer note 17A)

Spmmary of significant accnunting policies (Refer note 2)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our repott of even date

Fur S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP

For and on bfhalf of Board of DF
Chartered Accountants Riveria C ial Deve 33
i istration Number 301003EEI00KS
] .
7 e} (% :

jeet \an Prashant Gawrsy Gupta
Parner Irecter Drrector
(Bl !!.-l‘h:{'lf} DIN 07951372

Mentbesship Mutnber 501733 .
_A “L‘\l'
{

Shreyvasi Selvastans

Ankur Viuheshwari

Company Secretan
MONO  ASIT

Chief [ maneral (e

Flace : Curigram Flace | Caurupran

Date = May Ts, %022 Phate = Vi 34 102




Riveria Commercial Developers Limited

Statenient of changes in cquity for the vesr ended March 31, 2022

Al amounts in ¥ lacs, nnless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subseribed and Rully paid up

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Changes due o prior period errors
Restated balance as at Apnl 1, 2020
Changes during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Changes due to prior perod errors
Restated balance as at Apnl 1, 202
Changes during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2022

B Other equity

Number of shares Amount (T in lacy)
50,000 5.00
50,000 500
50,001 500

Particulars Reserves and surplus | Total
Retained earnings Equity component of | Equity component of
(Refer note 17) preference shares | optionaly convertible
(Refer note 17) debentures
Asat April 1, 2020 (14,768.62) 5,568.27 - (9,200.35)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period error - - -
Restated balance as at Apnl 1,2020 - : . F
Loss for the year (6,242.45) - - (6,242,45)
Other comprehensive income 17.62 - - 1762
As at April 1, 2021 {20,993.45) 5.568.27 - (15,425.18)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period error - - - -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2021 - - - -
Loss for the vear (4,466.12) - - (4,466.12)
Issuance of optionaly convertibe debenture {refer note 174) - - 27,500.00 27,500.00
Other comprehensive income 347 - - 347
Asat March 31, 2022 (25,456.10) 5,568.27 27,500.00 7.612.17
Summary of significant accounting policies {refer note 2}
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batiboi & Ca, LLP For and oo behaif of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
[CAl Firm [cg;‘lrallon Mumber 301003E/E300005
/ L *
per Aght Yadav ingh Prashant Gaurav Gupta
Partner Director | LV Director
Membership Number 501733 DIN: 07951272 °
~3 W\
A d « o UCh
" { N \}LF
Ankur Maheshwari Shreyasi Srivastava
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M.NO. - AS9017
Pluce : Gurigrnm Place : Curngram
Date : May 16, 2022 Date ; May 16, 2022
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2.1

2.2

Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2022

Corporate Information

Riveria Commercial Developers Limited (“the Company™ or "RCDL"), was incorporated in 2007 for entering into long term
lease agreement with New Delhi Municipal Corporation (NDMC) for the development, operation and maintenance of multiplex-
cum-entertainment and commercial complex at Yashwant Place, Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi. (“The
Chanakya™).

The Company is a public limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act.
The registered office of the Company is located at The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi
- 110021

The Company is principally engaged in the business of rental, maintenance and management of investment property. The
Company is also engaged in the restaurant and cafe business.

The Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of
the Board of Directors on May 16, 2022.

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and presentation requirements of Division 1
of Schedule 11T to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111), as applicable to the financial statements. The
Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented except as mentioned in note 2.3 below.

The Company has incurred losses in the current year and previous year amounting to Rs. 4,466.12 lacs and Rs. 6,242.45 lacs,
respectively. Due to the losses incurred in the past, the net worth of the Company has been completely eroded. The net working
capital is negative and prima facie reflects a net current liability position. However, the holding company has provided full
financial support in previous years and has assured continued financial support for the future operations of the Company. Based
on the support from holding company and positive business projections, the financial statements have been prepared on going
concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial
liabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise
indicated.

Summary of significant accounting Policies

a) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

o  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e  Held primarily for trading
o  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e It is expected to be seltled in normal operating cycle
o It is held primarily for trading
o tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2022

e  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle

b) Foreign currency transaction

c)

Functional and presentational currency
The Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian %, which is also the functional and presentational currency of the
company.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the closing
rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Investment properties

Recognition and initial measurement

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment properties are measured
initially at their cost of acquisition including transaction cost. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price when significant parts ofthe Investment property are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on the specific useful lives.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and usefid lives)
[nvestment properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation on
investment properties is provided on straight line basis over the useful lives of the asset as follows: -

Useful Life Estimated Useful Life as per Schedule
Asset Category j IT to the Companies Act ,2013
(in years) .
(in years)
Building * 25.39 60
Plant and Machinery 15 15
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10

* Building is taken on lease till February 2043, therefore the same is depreciated towards the remaining useful life.

The residual value, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
prospectively.
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2022

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is
disclosed in the note 5. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external
independent valuer applying a valuation model acceptable internationally.

De-recognition

[nvestment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of de-recognition.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects which are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/construction cost, borrowing costs and
other direct expenditure.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition.

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset 1o its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Properties, Plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation on properties, plant and equipment is provided on Straight line basis over the useful lives of the asset as follows:

Useful Life Estimated Useful Life as per
Asset Category (‘in = Schedule II to the Companies Act,
y 2013 (in years)
Building 25.39 60
Plant and machinery 15 15
Furniture and Fixtures-restaurant 8 8
Furniture and Fixtures-general 10 10
Office equipment 5 5
Computer 3 3

* Building is taken on lease till February 2043, therefore the same is depreciated towards the remaining useful life.

The residual value, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
prospectively. if appropriate.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement when the asset is de-recognized.
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2022

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventory comprises of below mentioned items:-
e Stock for maintenance and recreational facilities (including Consumables, stores and spares)
e  Stock of liquor, food and beverages

Cost comprises of cost of purchase and other related incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs of necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods
or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is recognized as follows:

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Pursuant to the application of Ind AS 115 — ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ effective from April 1. 2018, the
Company has applied following accounting policy for revenue recognition:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms
of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government and is net of rebates and discounts. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent.

The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods
and services before transferring them to the customers.

Revenue is recognised in the income statement to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

The Company has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ to recognise revenue
in the financial statements. The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met;

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the Company
performs; or

b) The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or
¢) The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which
the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time and over a period of time based on various conditions as included in the contracts
with customers.

Point of Time:
Revenue from sale of food, beverages and liquor are recorded net of taxes and discounts as and when the service are rendered.

Over a period of time:
Revenue from service income, parking income is recognized on an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms of the respective
contract on rendering of the services to customers,
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2022

Income from forfeiture of properties from customers is accounted for on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the
contract.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from maintenance service and other operating income as receipt of consideration is conditional on successful provision
of service. Upon completion of service. the amount recognised as contract asset are reclassified to trade receivables.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (f) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and/or construction/production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident fund
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company makes contribution to statutory
provident fund in accordance with the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952,

The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to
the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a post-employment benelit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognized in the balance sheet
in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit/obligation at the balance sheet date, together with adjustments
for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation is calculated at or near the
balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. This is based on standard rates of inflation,
salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are determined close to each year end by reference to market yields on
government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Service cost on the Company’s
defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits expense. Net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability is included
in finance costs. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2022

Compensated absences

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the balance sheet
date is recognised on the basis of discounted value of estimated amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expected
to be availed by the employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than
one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit
and loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

Short-term employee benefits
Expense in respect of short-term benefits is recognized based on the amount paid or payable for the period during which services
are rendered by the employee.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit
and loss net of any reimbursement.

I the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
®  Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
¢ Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed except when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is
disclosed.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares,

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount and the impairment loss, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2022

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to
project future cash flows after the fifth year,

If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount
is reassessed, and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are accordingly
reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

1) Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost. fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level,

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost—a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions
are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and
e  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. When the Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of'a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.




Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended March 31, 2022

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted-average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with

the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. discounted at the original effective interest rate, with

the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider —
o  All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets.
e  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

(i) Trade receivables
In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit
losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the
balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date

(ii) Other financial assets
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses,

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at
the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

2) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and
financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
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De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

3) Reclassification of financial instruments

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition. no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities, For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes
to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident
to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that
is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

4) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures its financial instruments such as derivative instruments, etc. at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant
liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 40)

- Investment properties (note 5)

* Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 41)
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Tax

Curreni income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance
with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences. and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Sales and value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/Good and services tax paid, except:

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in
the balance sheet

Leases
The Company has applied the following policy after April 1, 2019:

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right
Lo control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-oi-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.. the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
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recognised, initial direct costs incurred. and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets, as follows:

= Building 23.85 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (1) Impairment of non-
financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afier the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low
value., Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

The Company has applied the following policy before April 1, 2019:

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement‘

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as finance lease.

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of
the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments under such leases are apportioned between the finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets in which case they are capitalized in
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accordance with Company s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in the periods
in which they are incurred. A Leased Assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of lease term, capitalised leased assets are depreciated over
the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Operating Lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the Company with expected inflationary costs. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned. Fit-out rental income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on accrual basis.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company
to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Cumulative redeemable preference shares
Cumulative redeemable preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the cumulative redeemable preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a
market rate for an equivalent cumulative redeemable instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at
fair value (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the redemption option that is recognised and included in equity since cumulative
redemption option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of
associated income tax. The carrying amount of the cumulative redemption option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the cumulative redeemable preference shares
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost as per Ind AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements'.
Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is assessed for recoverability
and in case of permanent diminution provision for impairment is recorded in statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of
investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Operating segments

An operating segment of a company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses and
for which discrete financial information is available. All operating segments are reviewed regularly by chief operating decision
maker to allocate resources and assess their performance. Performance is measured based on profit before tax as included in
internal management reports regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker. The Company has two reportable
segmenis i.e. (a) rentals and maintenance of investment property, and (b) restaurant business, The Company is operating in india
which is considered as a single geographical segment.
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2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards that have an impact on the company’s financial statements, performance and/or
disclosures

(i) Interest Rate Benclmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS
Iis

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered
rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

e A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by
the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of
interest

o Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued

e  Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR
instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

(ii) Concepiual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore, this does not form part of
a set of standards pronounced by the standard-setters. While the Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter
for formulating the standards, it has relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as to develop consistent
accounting policies for areas that are not covered by a standard or where there is choice of accounting policy, and to
assist all parties to understand and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS
includes amendment of the footnote to the definition of an equity instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments,
footnote to be added for definition of liability i.e. definition of liability is not revised on account of revision of
definition in conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
etc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS vide
notification dated June 18, 2021, applicable for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. Accordingly, the
Conceptual Framework is applicable for preparers for accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

(iii) Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 to update the
condition for lessees to apply the relief to a reduction in lease payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022

from June 30, 2021. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021.

Since Company’s current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, there is no material effect on the financial
statements of the Company.

(iv) Ind AS 103: Business combination

The amendment states that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. Therefore, the acquirer does not recognise those
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costs as part of applying the acquisition method. Instead, the acquirer recognises those costs in its post-combination
financial statements in accordance with other Ind AS,

This amendment had no impact on the financial statements of the Company but may impact future periods should the
Company enter into any business combinations.

(v) Amendment to ind AS 1035, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28

The definition of “Recoverable amount™ is amended such that the words “the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use™ are replaced with “higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use”. The consequential amendments are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28,

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to the Schedule [II of the Companies Act, 2013

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification. amended Schedule 111 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and III of Schedule I1I and are applicable from April 1,
2021.

Key amendments relating to Division IT which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to
comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

(i) Balance Sheet:

e Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished as
current or non-current.

e  Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital
due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

e Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

e  Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and
intangible asset under development.

e Ifacompany has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial
institutions. then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

e  Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of
arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held
in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors. key managerial personnel (KMP) and
related parties, details of benami property held etc.

(ii) Statement of profit and loss:

Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual
currency specified under the head ‘additional information” in the notes forming part of financial statements,

The above disclosure amendments were extensive and the appropriate effect (to the extent applicable) to them, as
required by law has been given in the financial statements of the Company.

New and amended standards, not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) in consultation with National Financial Reporting Authority (NFRA) vide
its notification dated March 23, 2022, has made certain amendments in Companies (Indian Accounting Standard
Rules), 2015. Such amendments shall come into force with effect from April 1, 2022, but do not have a material
impact on the financial statemenis of the Company:
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(i) Ind AS 103: Business combination

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framewark
for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of
Ind AS 103,

This amendment may impact future periods should the Company enter into any business combinations.
(ii) Ind AS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities. and Contingent Assets

The amendments specify that that the “cost of fulfilling® a contract comprises the *costs that relate directly to the
contract’, Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples
would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Since Company’s current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, there may not be material effect on the
financial statements of the Company.

(iii) Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability. Since Company’s current practice is in line with the clarifications issued,
there may not be material effect on the financial statements of the Company.

(iv) Ind AS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts
received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity
will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments
to have any impact on the financial statements of the Company.

a) Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Significant management judgements
The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have the
most significant effect on the financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets
requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of
the assets.

Classification of leases — The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the
leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but not
limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated certainty
of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic life, proportion of present value of minimum
lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.
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Determining the lease term of contracts with remewal and termination options (Company as lessee)- The Company
determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease. together with any periods covered by an option to
extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it
is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination
options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability

to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements
or significant customisation to the leased asset),

Significant estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, are described below.
The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the s financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur,

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Valuation of investment property — Investment property is stated at cost. However, as per Ind AS 40 there is a
requirement to disclose fair value as at the balance sheet date. The Company engaged independent valuation specialists
to determine the fair value of its investment property as at reporting date. The determination of the fair value of investment
properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows from the assets (such as lettings, future revenue streams,
capital values of fixtures and fittings, any environmental matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and
discount rates applicable to those assets. In addition, development risks (such as construction and letting risk) are also
taken into consideration when determining the fair value of the properties under construction. These estimates are based
on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.
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4 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings Plant and machinery Furniture and fixtures Office cquipment Towl
Gross Block
Asat April [, 2020 5.024.99 329402 45226 4842 8.819.69
Additions . . 5 0,69 0,69
As at March 31, 2021 5,024.99 3.294.02 452,26 49.11 ,820.38
As at April 1,2021 5.024.99 3,294.02 452.26 49.11 8.820.38
Additions ; 2927 289 1.28 3344
As at March 31,2022 5,024.99 3.323.29 455.15 50,39 8.853.82
Acewmulared Depreciation
Asat April [, 2020 474.80 763.63 106.20 2333 1.367.96
Charge for the year 19897 393.13 56.78 17.47 666.35
As at March 31, 2021 673.77 1,156.76 162.98 20,80 2.034.31
Asat April 1, 2021 673.77 1,156.76 162.98 40,80 2,054.31
Charge for the year 198,97 400,35 56.90 403 660,25
As at Mareh 31, 2022 872.74 1,557.11 219.88 44.83 2,694.56
Net Block
As at March 31, 2021 4,351.22 2,137.26 289.28 8.31 6,786.07
As at March 31,2022 4,152.25 1.766.18 235.27 5.56 6,159.26

(i) Contractual obligations
Refer note 46B (1) for disclosure of contractual commitments for acquisition of property plant and equipment

(i) Capitalised borrowing cost
No borrowing cost was capitalised during the current year (March 31, 2021: Rs. NIL).

(iii) Useful life of building

Building constructed on land covering area of 107,639 sqlt is taken on lease from NDMC for 30 years starting from the possession year i.e. 2013, The construction began
in 2013, based on favourable arbitration award dated February 16, 2016 and was capitalised during the vear 2018, Accordingly, depreciation is charged over the
remaining useful life of the lease, Refer note 2.2(e).

(This space has been iventionally left blank)
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5 Imvestment Projiciis

Tavestment property

Buildings Plant aml muchiners  Furniture uni fviuees Office equipment Tl i Dol i Tl
Lt
Giross Block
Adt Aprl | 2020 s T Dl 97 181107 173 MRS 02 13 i |3
Additions = 1495 = ~ [EL . (EX A
Awat Mareh 31, 2021 24059.07 fb1692 18067 1731 304737 713 3048110
2 . — o L S
Asat Agnl | 2021 1e08y 07 Gl 02 18047 1731 0473 97 713 30881 10
Additon W37 72 . . 548 = 2544
Dhsposals/ Adpustiments 30 1520 % . .00 713 W13
An At March 31, 2022 241354 G085 180,67 1731 30.420.36 - 30.420.36
Acesmielietod Depreeciurion
A af Apel 1. 2020 23011 133519 600 1419 3745 60 = 3RS 0
Charge for the sear 951 (K A4 62 e IR r L 302 305 14 . 1305 14
As an Mirch 31, 2021 3.321.79 [RCAR) 672 17.31 5,2901,73 » 73
SR, £
Asal Apnl 1. 2021 3321 L3 0 G172 1731 5007 - 529073
Chiarge for the year 149 K0 $24.10 172 . 1,403 62 = 1495 62
Disposnls/ Adjusiments L . " . - = 5
As at March 31,2022 4.371.59 2AUHAL .44 1731 6.786.35 = 6.766.35
=LA SRR+ A R ki
Net Block
As it Mirrch 31, 2021 TITH 4733400 11205 2 25.583.34 713 25.500.37
Asall Murchi 31,312 19.741.95 400R3 u1.23 . 24,034.01 - 24,034.00
1) Contractiul obligations
Refer node 468 {x) lor disz) afl’ 1 Tor thi: development of wvesiment propeny

(i} Capitalised bureowing cost
Nao borrowing cost was capitalised durng the current year (March 31,2021 Rs. NIL)

fiid) Usedul life of building

Building constructed on land covermy arca of 117,634 sqfl 1s wken on lease from NDME For 30 ycars siarting ftom the possessson year e 2013, The construction bogan m 20013, baged on [vourable arbiiration award dated Februory 16,
20006 and was capialised duniing the sear 2018 Accordingly, depreciation is chargod oyer the ramaimng uselil Wie of the leasg, Refer now 2. 2e),

{iv) Informutivn reganting ineome and espeniliture of Tmvestment Projierts

Particulars Murch 31, 2022 Murch 31,2021
Remal income derved from mmvestment propenty (reler note 249) 35 M JoR (13
Less: Direct operating expenses it gonermatead rontal income frefer note 36)* - 03
Less: Interest expense on lease liatnlities (refer note 45) 1895 10 | B B
Profit arising from investment property hefore deprechation wnd indinect expenses L6591 L1572
Lass: Depreciation on i estment properts 1495 62 L30s g
Less: Deprecianon of right-ol-use asseis 47 83 M7 82
Loas arising from investment property befure imlirect expensey (78431 (1.295.14)

* Durect operatmg expenses that gencrated reiiol income includes comussion and brokerage

(%) Fair vatlue hiecarehy snd valwtion teehniaue
Tl Compas’s v estment Propenty consist ol multiplex and retoil mall, fair value has bees detenmined based on the nature, :Jlnrnn:l:nsuca and risks of each property As ar March 31, 2022 awd March 31 2021, the faar valoe of the
propery 15 ¥ 33170 lacs and T 36,454 Incs respeaively The {aie valve of inyesiment propenty las been o d by estemal. i denit property saluer as delined under mile 2 of Companies | Registered Valuers and valuation) Rules

2017, havang apgro) f professional qualifi and recent e ik thie location and calegory of the propery being valued The Company obams mdependen + for its propery mually and far

vitlue measurement has bien mlcumscd as Level 3 The fair salue has been armved using diszounted cagh Mlow projestions based on reliable estimates of finire cash ows considering growth o renial of 3% (Mareh 31, 2021 3%%) long
team vacancy e of 3.00% (March. 31 2021 30075 and discount mie of 11307 031 March 2021 11501

308

3t

Recomgilintin value as at 31 March 2021 INR lacs
Mirch 31. 2020 in fx h L
Four vabue e EINI] ] H3

(¥T) Tovestment property under dey elupment
As u March 31, 2022

Ammgunt of IPUD Tor the period of Mareh 22

LLigss thin | yeur 1-2 years. 2-3 vears More than 3 veirs Towal
Projects m progress = + -
Projects tempormnly suspended - .
Total 5 - = = B

As ot Mureh 31, 2021

Aumount uf IPUD for the period of Mareh 21

Eeas tiitn 1 aear 1-2 veirs -3 veirs Mure thun 3 vears Tl
Projects i jrogrss - T13 - - 713
Proqects 1emporanly susperided =
Total . 713 - - 713
Ao March 31 2022 there oo progect dnder i estmenl prop wisdes b alog whose completion s overdoe ar has evegeded the cost bised an ongmal approved plan




Riserin Commerciol Developers Limited

Mot G thie fndncial ststements Tor the sear ended Marceh 31, 2022

(U arrnnaeents frr & facs, ooy offerise stated)

Murch 31, 2022 Murch 31, 2021
Other Finaneial Assers
(U nseeured, considered goud unless othernise stnted)
Seeuris doposits il 4% ol 4%
hlLd% G148
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Dheferred tay asset (net)
{ath Deferrend tus Hability areising on aceount of
Inpaet of equis ol I 1! e pref shares 1 L1306 o) 0,148 iy
Tpazt of properts, plant and cyuipment and i estment peopern 11952 76y (1,72 39y
Tapact of re-measureniont gam on delined benelin plan (eratuin | L3 {113}
Gross teferred tos labilities {2.990.39) (2.941.92)
Dreferred e asset arising on account of :
Unabsorbed depreciation and brought forwand business losses Al 72 30
Prosision for eoploves benelits wuy 93ad
Efeet ol adoption of mew accounting standard Ind AS |16 lepses yM 4| 45324
Othrs 35599 103 4
Gross deferred tax masets 77590 6,306,116
Netdeferred tan assels 4,768,67 36404
Net deferred tax assets reciognised in the Bulance Sheet = =

Diurungs the vear, the Company revisied iis business plans and lotire projections due to COVID 19 sconano and deeided 1o recognise deferred tox asscts anly (o the cvtent of deferred s labilines as there 15 no
certomty supported by cony ineig ovidenees of their reconverability in the near e

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

() Income L expense
Current tas

Doforred 1y - .
Ineome tax expense us reparteid in the Statement of Prafit and Loss -

The Compa follows Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-12) ~Income Taves™. as required by the Compames Act, 2013 read will and Indinn Accomming Standaeds noufied under the Compames (Indian Accounimy
Standards) Rules. 2013 The susmilicant camponent ol delerred tax includes temporan. dilferences on account of carried forward 125 losses and wn-absorbed depreciation. Tn the thsonce of comaneing ovidence thit sufficiont
taxable profits will be available agamst which the such carvied fornard 1oy losses ond wn-obsarbed depreciation, the Cotmpany has not recognised deferred tas azsels (net) n its books as on the balance sheet date

Murch 31, 2022 Murch 31, 2021
MNom=current tin nasets (net]
Adyance mcome Laxes 243 3% 3HE 25
243,23 4825
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Other non-current assets
Prepand expenses - 240
Caputal advances 215 115
L5 415
Mureh 31, 2022 Murch 31, 3021
Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost wnd net realisabile yalue)
Food ond beverages T 1582
Consumpbles. stores mnd spares 10 ki 1308
Liguor 607 STA
432 Ko.o%




Riverin €

merciil Deyvelojers Limited

Notes to the Founcial statements for the yeur coded Miech 51, 2022

(Al atretormianes o & Brcw, aoendeesy otlervvive sratid)

11

Temle receivilbies
Trade recen ables
Recen able from relmcd parties freler nole 490

Breakup e seearity detnils:
Secured, considersd sood**
Unseeured, considered good

Trade recets ables - sredit impained

Impairment dllowance (allowance for Bad aod doobefol debes)
Trade receiyables « credit imparred

Mireh 31, 2022

Murch 31, 3020

2000 5K
1z 1213
43120 ITRAT
4320 2 il
3138

G2%32 430 3%
1.0k 72 i i
102452 (439 55
44120 278,07

* Mo trade ar atler reecis able are due from dicestor or other offieess of e Conpais either severally or jomtly with ans athier persen nor ans rade or oiler reeen abile are due from (inns or proake compaimes respeetvel m

wluch any dircelor 15 partner. 7 diresior o o member

** Trade reeenables are sceured by way ol seeurity deposits recctsed from tenamts which s cgutsalent 1o 3 o 6 inonths of monthly rentals

For 1erms and conditioas relating 1o Relaled pamy reeen ibles, refer Nole 49

Agtling of teale recely abile for the sear ended March 31, 2022

learticuturs Dutstumling for following periods from due dute of Invoice
Less than 6 months| 6 months - 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3vears Mare thin 3 yeury Totul
111 Undisputed Trode receivables - considered good 33 56 4446 61 . 17 43120
141) Undigpuited Trade Resevables - which have sigmifieant merease m 2 = = -
crodit rish
{m1) Lindhsputed Trade Recom ables — credit impaired 20724 141 .27] RARE] 3.0 629 52
v ) Disputed Trade Recwivables— considered good = E £ . = =
%) Dusputed Trade Recomvabiles — which ave significant iserease i eredit - - - - -
sk
{1i) Disputed Trade Recetvables = credit mmpaired E* - 2 = = =
Tatal all ao 35214 14724 4143 4137 1, WGl 72
Aging of trude reccivable for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021
Particulars Ohutstanding for [ollows ods from due date of linoice
Legs than 6 wonths | 6 noaths - 1 vear | -2vears 2-3voors Moge than 3 vears Total
(1) Undisputed Trade receivablos - considerod pood 17592 9y 441 #33 - 2707
(i) Undisputed Trade Recemvables — which have significant mcrease n - - - -
cradit rish
(1t} Undisputed Trade Reocesvables — crodit impoired FU0.95 - L34 il - - 439,55
(v} Disputed Trade Recenvables— copmdered good - - - -
{v) Dhsputed Trade Recen ables - which have sigmificant incroase in credit - - ¥ -
nzh
(%) Disputed Trode Recenables — eredit impuired - - - - - -
Toeal 470 47 LN 14301 .35 - TT62
*Linadpsied ercdits i he custonter accouwnl liave boen adjusted i the carficst ling [or the .|
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Caush jomil cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- In current accounts™ 1589 33 26040
Cashan hand 370 452
1849431 20,50
i s
* charge on balance on designated bank account for the loan taken by holding company
Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of el debl and e mosciments mnet debt (br cach of the periods presented
Purticulies 31 Murch 222 31 Mareh 2021
Current barrom mygs 1303 on [TENTH
Mon-current borrow ings J25R3 7T 4884113
Less. Cash and eash equivalents 1493 31 264 94
Nt debt 2149346 AB6TRIT
Chunges in lubilitics arising from financial ac
Wet debt os on Murch 31, 2022
Particulury As on April 1, 2021 Interest on liabiliny Tssuance of Cugh Miows As on Murch 31,2022
I of i
preference shures convertibe
Curront bormowings 103 (i - - 170 fitk 140300
Mon-current borrow ings 4844113 442062 (27314010 Nk 33 581.77
Less Cash and cash cquivalonts 26d 98 - - 1624 33 1.893.31
Net debi AHATO T 44262 (27500000 KTLAT 1349346
*neludes 1ssue ol 100" Optioaally Convertible Debentures of T 27300000 Tnes by way of adjustment of sigceured loail {repay able on demand) (also refer note oo [74)
Net bt as on March 31,2021
Purticulars Ason April 1, 2020 Toterest on lubility Isswinee of Cash flows As on March 31, 2021
I of i
preference shires comvertibe
Current borrow s 41 - - 14,015 110 103 0
Mon-current borrow s 1147132 REtRIE) - 6871 A1 4441 LS
Less Cash and cosh cguyalents 17356, - T 062 i 8
Mot leht 4557190 Junnd - 270830 48.679.17




Riverin Commercinl Developers Limited
Sotes o the finuncisl stgements foe the sear endid March 31, 2022
U ammmanes o € faos, srbesy athenvine seansd)

Other bank batances
Deporsits witly the rempmg surs of more tei 3 swonths b less tan 12
sty

Other Tinuncial ety
Unbilled recewables (Rent stranghilunig )
Security deposits

Other current asscts

Prepand expenses

Prepasd livventon,

Adsainees to supplicrs of woods aud ser ices
Considered good
Congidered doubilul

Balances witl goyemment authorilies

Others

Less Provssian for doubiful sdyanecs

iy spewe Do been mrentimathe feft Alank)

Murch 31, 2022 Murch 31, 202)
2730 1070 37

12730 LIFT87

Murch 31, 20122 Murch 31, 2021
43024 4u 39

1643 1843

436,07 SITH2

March 31, 3022

March 31, 2021

A5 46 34 K4
1570 034
(B 193
532 D33
19535 2
nli 1%
266004 157.01
13.32) {:33)
261L70 14748
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Riveria Co crcinl Developers Limited

Notes to the financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(A wmonnts in € lacy, anless otherwive stated)

16 Share capital
16A  Equity share capital
Authorized equity share capital
Equity shures of T 10 cach
As at April 1, 2020
Changes during the yvenr
As at March 31,2021
Changes durine the vear
As at March 31, 2022

Issued equity share capital

Equity shares of 2 10 ench ssued, subseribed and fully pard up
As at April 1, 2020

Changes during the year

As at March 31, 2021

Chanyes during the year

As ot March 31, 2022

(n) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

Number Amount in ¥
2000000 20000
2,000,000 o000
2.000,000 2I]ll=l.lllm

Number Amount in ¥

50,004 00
30,000 .00
50,000 5.00

The Company has only one class of equity shares huving o par value of 2 10 per share Each halder of equity shares 15 entitled to ane vote per share The Company declares und pays
dividend 1n Indian Rupees The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is sulyect to the approval of the share holders m ensung Annual General Meetimg

In the event of hqwdation of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled 10 recerve remniming assets of the Comipany, after distribution of all preferential amounts The
distnbunion will be m proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(b) Sharcholding in the Comy

y of the holding

DLF Commercial Developers Limited

Class of shares MNumber of shares Zin lnes

Muarch 31,2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Equity shares of 210 each 50,000 50,000 500 500
DLF Commereial Developers Limited
Total 50,000 50,000 5.00 5.00
(e) Details of shares held by holding y and shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Comp
Name of shareholder March 31,2022 Mareh 31,2021

Number of shares o haoldi Number of shares %o holding

Eqguity shares of 210 each fully paid up 50,000 100 00% 50,000 100 00%

As per records of the Company, meludmg its register of shureholders members and other declarations receved from shureholders rearding beneficial mierest, the above shareholding

represents bath legal and beneficial ownership of shares

The Company has neither 1ssued any bonus shares nor has there been any buyback of shares in the current year and preceding five years

d) Details of shares held by promotersipromoter group
As at March 31, 2022

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year No. of Change No, of shares Yo af ¥ Change during
shares at the during ot the end of Total the vear
beginning of the the year Shares
the year year
DLF Commercinl Developers Limited 30,000 - an,000 1000 0.00%
Total 50,000 - 50,000 100%a 0.00%
As ut March 31,2021
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year Nowof Change No. of shares % of % Change during
shares at the during at the end of Totsl the year
beginning of the the year Shares
the vear vear
DLF Commercial Developers Limied 50,000 - 50,000 100% 0.00%
Totul 50,000 - 50,000 100% 0.00%

{Thex sprave has been mtentonadly left blank)
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(A wmmronemnis in € lues, wndess otherwive stuted)

16 B Preference share capital
(o) Authorized preference share capital

Cumulative redeemable preference share of € 100 ench Number Amount in T
Asat April 1,2020 8,800,000 §,800.00
Changes durmg the year - -
As at March 31,2021 8,800,000 #,800.00
Changes durimg the vear = -
Asat March 31,2022 8,800,000 5,800,00

(b} Equity component of 8,596,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares of T 100 cach issued and fully paid

Number Amount in 3
As at April 1, 2020 8,396,000 5,568.27
Increase/decrease during the year & ~
As at Mareh 31, 2021 8,596,000 5,568.27
Inerease/decrease dunng the year - -
Asat March 31,2022 8,596,000 5,568.27

Nate 16 covers the equity component of the 1ssued cumulative redeemable preference shares The liability component is reflected m finuneial habilines (refer note 18)

¢) Sharcholding in the Company of the holding company and jts subsidiaries:
Clnss of shares Shareholder Relation March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares DLF Commercinl | Holding Company 8,596,000 8,596,000
Developers Limted

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Class of share and shareholder Murch 31,2022 Mureh 31,2021 Muarch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. ol shares MNo. of shares % holding % holding
Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of T100 each fully paid up 8,596,000 8,596,000 100% 100%

DLF Commercial Developers Limited (including nominges thereof)

Rights, preferences und restrictions attaching to various classes of shares
Class of shares Rights, preferences and restrictions ( including restrictions on distributions of
dividends and repayment of capital) attached to the class of preference shares

5,125,000 0.01% cumulative redeemable preference shares Preference shares bear a fixed dividend of 0. 01% per annum payable on March 31 every
financial year and to be paid within 30 days from the closure of the financial year The,
said preference shares are at the option of the board of directars can be redeemed at any
trme after the expiry of & months from the date of allotment (1 e June 27, 2008) but not
liter than June 26, 2028, The dividend nights are cumulative The Preference shares rank
ahead of the Equity shares 1n the event of hquidation The presentation of the hability and
equity portions of these shares 15 explamed in the summary of accounting policies

56,000 001% cumulative redeemable preference shares Preference Shares bear a fixed dividend of 0.01% per annum payable on March 31 every
financial year and to be pmid within 30 days from the elosure of the financial year The
sad preference shares are at the option of the board of directors can be redeemed at any
tme after the expiry of & months from the date of allotment (i e July 23, 2008) but not
later than July 22, 2028 The dividend rights are cumulative The Preference shares rank
ahead of the Equity shares in the event of iquidation The presentation of the Liability and
equity partions of these shares 1s explomed m the summary of accounting policies

3415000 001% cumulative redeemable preference shares Preference Shares bear a fixed dividend of 0 01% per annum payable on March 31 every
financial year and to be pmd withm 30 days from the closure of the financial year The
said preference shares are at the option of the board of directors can be redeemed at any
time after the expiry of 6 months from the date of allotment (12 Augist 18, 2008) but not
later than August 17, 2028 The dividend rights are cumulative The Preference shares
rank ahead of the Equity shares in the event of liquidation. The presentation of the
[linbility and equity portions of these shares is explained in the summary of accounting

iy speace hay heen mremionally feft blunk)
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Riverin Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the finuncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al wntontnts in € laes, wadless otherwive stated)

March 31,2022 March 31,2021

17 Other equity

I7TA

Retamed earmings (23456 10) {20,993 45

Equity component of Preference shares [refer note 16B( b 5368 27 5.568 27

Equity component of Opnienallv Convertible debenture 27.500 00 -
7,612.17 IIS.-IZS.N!!

(1) Retnined earnings

As per last balance sheet (20,993 45} {14,768 62)

Loss for the year {466 12) (6,242 45)

347 |7 62

Other comprebiensive eome

(25,456.10) (20.993.45)

{h) Equity component of preference shares
Equity component of preference shares
Equity component of Optionally convertible debentures

5.568.27 5.508.27

Durmy the year, in comphance to the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and the rules mode thereunder. the Company 1ssued 27.50,00.000 0 01% Optionally Convertible
Debentures (OCDs) of 2 10 each amounting 1o 2 37.500 00 lacs to DLF Commercial Developers Lumnted (*DCDL'). holding company, by way of private placement on preferential
allotment basts. For this purpose, existing unsecured Joan amountimg to 2 27,500.00 laes has been adjusted us subseniption money for the OCDs

The consideration is on the basis of farr valuation report obiained from an extermnal valuer, relevant terms of which are as under
Optrenally Convertible Debenures proposed to be issued 10 the investors will have the following terms
| OCDs shall earry imterest rate of 0 01% p.a and shall be payable on an annual basis.

3 Maximum tenure of the OCDs shall be 10 years
3 The Company may. at any time during the tenure of OCDs {i.e wathin 10 years from the date of allotment of OCDs) may convert the OCDs nto equity shares of the Company in

the ratio of | [ (re | equity share of the Company for each OCD 1ssued by (he Company) or redeem the OCDs ar an amount equal 1o the farr value of such number of equily shares
that would have been 1ssued. hod the OCDs been converted mto equity shares of the Company. or at par value of OCDs, whichever is higher However, the Company needs to

mandatonly choose either of the options during the tenure of the DCDs
Since the instriments meets the eritena for classification as an equity instrument in aceordance with Ind AS 109 "Financial Instrurnents”, Accordingly the same has been considered as

equity

(Thes space fax heen sentonally lefi hank)
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Riveria Conercial Developers Limited
Notes o the finpocial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(A warrnitssey B0 ftes, wnnfess otfrerive susted)

8.1

4

Borrowings {non-current}

Unseeured loan from DLEF  Commereml Deselopers Lunmed, the Holding Compamy [refer

e 18 1]
Liability component of other funncial instrumients
H RN March 31 2020 8,396,001 0"y 1}

1Mk gach fully patd up Jrefer note 1% 2]

March 31, 2012

Mureh 31, 2021

15,100 46

A4 KR iy

44773 4054 64
22,581.77 LIS

The loans are repayable on demand atamy me atter: March 31, 2022 The loans carn an iterest o 7 3% per anmum (March 3120210 7 3% per annum)

For Terms/nights attached o vanous classes of preforenee shares refer nate 16B(5)

Other financial linbilities (non-current)
Seeurimy deposits recenved

Lease liabilities
Lease latulites (refer nate 48)

Lung-term provisions
Gratuty (refer note 43)

Other non-current linbilities
Deferred meome *

*“The deferred income relates to the income on discounting of Security deposits recvaved from lessees as per Ind AS 32 Financial |

Borrowings {current)

Unseenred loan (rom DLF Home Developers Linuted, the Holdme Company*

Muarch 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

3241

BRI

432,41

44051

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

16,245 34

16,245.54

March 31, 2022

Mprch 31, 2021

BRI 3728
38.56 37.28
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
7930 1l 97
7950 190.97
1o b d i the luase penod.

* Thiis loan 1 repayable on demand and carmes an mierest a7 5% per annum (March 31,2021, 7.3% per anmum)

Trade payables

March 31, 2022

Mareh 31, 2021

LEO3 00

| [ERI)

1,803.00

103,00

March 31, 2022

March 31. 2021

Due to micro cnterprises and small enterprises (refir note 47) R 1h 1w
Duse to other than migro enterprises and small enteminses LI0T 38 AnE T2
103834 (06,91

Aging of trade pavable for the yeor ended March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from invoice date
Particulars Not Due | Less than | vear | 1 - 2 vears |2 -3 years More than 3 years Totl
(1) MSME > 30.96 - - 30.96
{ii) Orlers 33313 13411 9238 132 J6 4 1,007.38
(iif) Disputed dues - MSME = e = - =
|{iv} Disputed ducs - Others = - = ' = =
Toral 533.13 185,07 19138 1.31 26.44 1,038, 34
Aging of teade payable for the year ended March 31, 2021

Dutstanding for following periods from invoice date
Particulars Not Due | Less than | vear | 1-2 svears |2 - 3 vears More than 3 years Total
{1} MSME = 1363 - 444 0. 15 1%
{11} Others TS 1607 3831 506 38872
(it} Disputied dues - MSME - - - - = =
(i) Disputod dues - Others = = = ] = =
Tatal 3373 154 1% L6 07 4275 36 il ]
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Riveria Commercisl Developers Limited
Notes (o the Mnancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(AR ansanents i & lwes, wifess otfrenvise stated)

=
th

16

17

March 31, 2022 March 31, 202
Dhher Mnancial hnhilities (eureent)
Iterest acerued but mor due an horrowings 1723 54 TR
Crediors for capital poods 300 34 BN
Seeunty deposits 1273 ) 1378 23
3.297.42 4,593.32
Terms and conditions of the above financial labilities (for note 23 and 24)
11 Trade payables and creditors for capital goods are non itenst bearng
1) For terms and conditians relating to Related parts. refer none 44
Far explanaton on the Company's eredit risk management processis, refir note 4 |
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Short-term provisions
Grannty {refer tote 433 1h iy bt
Lenve encashment 1 in b 16
.62 062
— Murch 31,2027 March 31, 2021
Other curvent liabilities
Statutory dues |54 53 143 80
Advaneus from customers M7 Q28
Deferred imcome Tm T8 15
Otlier pas able 234y 240l
157.59 257.93
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Lense linbilities
Lease hables (rofer note 4K) 439 34 ALY fify
459,34 AU AR
(T space e been mtemteanally fett blank)
i N
\.
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Riverin Commercial Developers Limited

Notes to the financial stutements for the vear ended March 31. 2022

(AN arrownts in T facs, unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

29 Revenue from operstions
(A) Rental income ® 3.55424 3.008.03
3.554.24 3.,008.03

29.2

29.3

* Includes Rs. 166,07 lacs (March 31, 2021 Rs 9163 lacs) mcome on account of linancial lability measured at amortised cost and Rs. (61 135) laes
(March 31. 2021 Rs 320 83 Jacs) on account of straight-lining impact of rental income

(B) Revenue from contracl with customers

Disaggregated revenue information

Sales of food, beverages and liquor 1.675.81 1.257.09
Service income 1,087 25 1,031.03
Parking Income 71.57 43.03
2,834.63 233115

Other operating revenue
Others 18.86 3.89
18.86 339
Total Revenue from contract with customers (B) 2,853.49 2,335.04
Total Revenue from operations (A+B) 6,407.73 5.343.07

Timing of revenue recognition

Services translirred at a point in time [,747.38 1,300.12
Services transferred over period of time 1,106.11 1,034.92
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,853.49 2,335.04

Contract halances

Trade receivable from contracts with customers 31579 230,67
Contracl assets = i
Contract liabilities (refer note 27) 48.80 928

Trade receivables are generally on terms of 7 to 30 days. Interest on delay in payment from customers( it any) 1s recognised as per terms ol contracts

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from maintenance service and other operating income as receipt of consideration is conditional on
successtul provision ol service. Upon completion of service, the amount recognised as contract asset are reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract liabilities include advances recerved in respect of provision of maintenance services to the tenant

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Movement of contract liabilities

Contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 9.28 12.57
Amount of revenue recognised from amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the vear (9.28) (12.57)
Amount received/adjusted against contract liabilities during the year 48.80 9.28
Contract liabilities at the end of the year® 48.80 9.28

# included under the head "advances from customers” in note 27,

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price:-

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Revenue as per contract price 285349 2.335.04
Adjustment (if any) i

2.853.49 2.335.04
There are no remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at Mareh 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

Performance obligation
The performance obligation of the company in case of maintenance service is satisfied over the time. using an input method to measure progress towards
complete satislaction ol the service, because of customers simultaneously reeerves and consumes the benefits provided by the company. The company raises
invoices as per the terms of the contracts. upon which the payvment is due to be made by the tenant.

As per the terms of service contract with the customers. the Company has night to consideration {rom customers in an amount that directly corresponds with
the value to the customers ol the company's performance obligation completed il date. Accordingly. the company has used the practical expedient under
Ind AS 115 Revenue from contract with customers’ and has disclosed information relating to performance obligation 1o the extent reyuired under Ind AS
115 Iy \
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30

31

32

33

34

Other income
Interest [rom:
Bank deposits
Income tax refund
Liabilities no longer required written back
Miscellaneous income

Cost of food, beverages and consumables

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: purchases
Less: inventory at the end of the year

Cost of services

Electricity. fuel and water

Heating. ventilation and air-conditioning
Facility maintenunce expenses

Parking maintenance

Employee benefits expense

Salaries. wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (refer note 43)

Stafl welfare

Depreciation expense

Deprectation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 4)
Depreciation on investment property (refer note 5)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 48)

Finance cost
Interest expense on

Loans from related parties (refer note 49)

Financial liability measured at amortised cost (refer note 49)

Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 48)
Guarantee, finance and bank charges

March 31, 2022

Mareh 31, 2021

27 89 29.08

2951 1486

9.80 169.07

435 793

71.75 220.94

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
8998 I11.62

314.21 357.86

(84.32) (89.98)

519.87 379.50

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

32239 288.02
190.37 171,16
788.48 743.79
131.67 130.62

1.432.91 1.333.59
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
33896 279,51

26.01 2325

9.08 16.83

27.62 23.23

401.67 342.82
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
660.25 666.35
1.495.62 1.505.04
947.83 947.82
3.103.70 3.119.21
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1.91542 331676
612,83 48371
1,895.10 1.849.88

4840 43.69

447175 5.694.04
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36

37

Other expenses

Lease rent

Repair and maintenance
Commission and brokerage
Legal and professional

Auditors fee *

Advertisement and publicity
Busingss promotion expenses
Printing and stationery

Service & maintenance

Business support service charges
Communication expenses
Insurance

Rates and taxes

Manpower cosl

Hire charges

Provision for doubtful receivables and advances
Laundry and linen expense
Miscellaneous expenses

*Payment to auditors

As auditor

Statutory audit and limited review fees
Tax audit lees

Retmbursement of expenses

Tax expense
Current lax

Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary dillerences
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by statutorv income tax rate for the vear indicated are as follows:

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

4.56 436
LT 65.95
0.33
80.86 49.30
15,05 15.56
442 2.66
11691 67.29
7.7 724
191.69 173.16
30.09 4415
1.32 |49
4742 41 80
102,02 107.91
57.51 2696
12.19 10.85
189.97 300,95
823 7.50
8.58 9.64
1.015.70 937.30
12,60 12,60
2.00 2.00
045 0.96
15.05 15.56

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Accounting loss before tax {4.466.12) {65242 45)
Tax at statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2021: 25.168%) {1,124.03) (L571.10)
Adjustments on account of below mentioned differences:

Unrecognised delerred tax on current vear losses 1,124.03 1.571.10
Total Adjustments 1.124.03 157110

Total (tax income) / tax expense - -

(This space has been mrentionally left blank)
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38 Earning or (Loss) Per Share (EPS/LPS)

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year atributable o equity holders of the Company by the Weighted Average number ol

Equity shares outstanding during the vear

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit attnibutable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares

into equity shares.
The following reflects the mcome or (loss) and share data used in the Basic and Diluled EPS Computation:

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Loss per share

Net loss as per statement of profit and loss for the vear (4,466.12) (6,242,45)
Less: Preference dividend for the year 086 0.86
Net loss atiributable to equity shareholders (4,466.98) (6,243.31)
Basic (EPS) (3) (8.933.96) (12,486.62)
Calculation of Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS:
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding * 50.000 30,000
Total weighted average number of shares outstanding 50,000 50,000
Weighted average number of equity shares (Face value of 210 each) for the calculation of Diluted EPS 209,056,959 8.646.000
Diluted (EPS) (3)* {8,933.96) (12.486.62)
Caleulation ef Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS:
Weighted average number of equity shares 50.000 50,000
Weighted average number of Cummuative Redeemable Preference Share 8,596,000 8,596,000
Weighted average number of OCDs 200,410.959 -
209,056,959 8,646,000

*Since the effiect of conversion of potential euity shares is anti-dilutive 1n nature.therefore basic and dilutive EPS has been considered as same.

(This space has been imtentionally left blank)
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Riveris Commercial evelopers Limited
Notes to the maneinl starements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
Cobi e ie & foes, sendess ethervive sated)

A Financinl instruments by catezors

Fale valie of instramemts measured at amortised cost

Particulars

Carrying value

Fuir valoe

March 31, 2022)  March 31, 2021 Mitreh 31,2022)  March 31, 1021
Finuncial assots
Trade recen able 431 Ryl A3l 20 N7
Cash and eash saun alents 13Uz 31 RIS 1003 3 R
Oter bank balanees 41730 Lm0 37 427 30 170 37
Other finaneial asscts 31815 57930 518 15 STH AN
Tounl finuncinl assels 3269096 L1972 3.269.96 19272
Finaneial linbilities
Borrowmes 2L3E0TT AR (S 24,380 77 AR 15
Lense linbilites 10.FI 4R 16295 2] 16,714 84 16,295 21
Trade pivnbles 103K 33 £t 1y |LI3E 35 il
Other finanesal lialines 370K 34034 13 3.729.43 J.034.13
Total financial linbilities 45.859.83 70.880.39 45,850.83 70,550,390

There are na financial mstrments What ane Gor salied, bienee disclescre relining o Gur value hierarchy are nol apphenhle o the compan

4

Financial risk management

The Compam s pronespal fianenl |l

operations The Compam s pruseipal finaneil assets include loans, rade and other recenables, cash and eagh equivalents &ather bank balanee than derise directly Fom us operauons

The Compans 1= exposed 10 market nsk, crecht risk and Lgudits risk The Campam ‘s senior

oversees the

loans and borros mgs, rade and other pavables. The man purpose of these fmpncil lipbilites 1s 0 finanee thie Compans s operations and to provide guaraniees 1o support ils

Lol these rishs The Compam s scoior management 15 supporied by a financial nsk commitiee tha

advises on fnancial naks and the appropriate Gnancial osk govemance frimework for the Company The fnancial tiek commitlee provides assurance 1o the Company ‘s semor managensent that e Compans s Arancal nsk asuvities

are yoserned by appropriate policies and procedures and that uancial righe are entili § and yed in Jance with the Company s pohicies and nsk obpectives

i) Finoncinl instrument by category
Faor amorised cost instrimients, earm i v alue represents the best esumate of Gir v alue
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

FVTPL FVOCI Amaortised cost FVTPL FVOCT Amaortised cost

Finuncial assets
Trade receivables 43120 . = 27807
Cash and equrvalems 1893 31 - - 26498
Other bank balances 427.30 - = L0037
Diher financial asszis - - 31815 - - 37930
Total - - 3.269.96 - - Linn
Finnneial linbilities
Bormowmgs - - 1438677 - - 48,944 15
Lease linhilities - - 16,704 38 - - 16,3952]
Other fnoneml labiliees ( SNon-Ciurrent) - 43241 . - ERTE ]
Teade panable - 103K 33 L]
Other finan abilites ( Curront} - - 330742 - 439332
Total - - 45.859.84 - T0.580.3%

LTy spae has beer iremtonaliy et blaniky
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Riveria Commercial Develupers Limited
Svirtes W the financind statements for the e ended March 31, 2022
(AN aernanantts e & fes, sadess odfrerwive sired)

i) Risk Management objectives wnid policies

The Compains s actrvities expose 40 mirhet nsh, Dudits risk and eredit sk The Compan’s hoand of drectirs has o crall iy Vo the establishment and oversighn of the Conpas s fish midzenent Fanssork s

e enplany the sosrees of tesk el the ety i esposed 1o and how the ity manages e resh wnd e related mpact o e oaseal stateoms

A1 Credi rish
Credit nisk s the sk that 2 coumerpirty Gnls 10 dcharge its sbhgation 1o the Company under o fnancial wstrument The Compain s exposare o credid rgh 15 mMuenced il b cash and cash cquealents. ather bank balinces.
trade revepvables. loans amd financial assets measured a1l amortsed cost The Company contiuously. momtors defanlls of cust 5 andd other erparties T s Uus mformition mto s eradil nsh contrals Credit rsh,
related o eashi & cash cquinilént and hink depas naged by only pecepting lighly rated banks and duersily bank deposi
ul - Credit vish manngement
1 Clredst rsk ratng
The Company. nssesses amil minages credit rish of finascial assels based on following enegones ammed on the basis of assumptions, sty and (etors speerfic to he class of [inanenl assels
A Low eredil nsk
B Moderate eredit nsh
© High eredut nsk,
The Compamy prosades for expected eredit loss based on the followmi
Asset Company Biisis of categorisation Provision for expenses credit loss
A Low credit risk Cash amd cash cquivalents. other bank balanees, loans and other financial assets 12 manth expeeted eradit lossMile time expected credil loss
B Moderate eredii nsk Trade recevable 12 month expected credin loss
C High credit rish Nat applicable Not applicable
Rased o busihoss ensironnient in which the Company operates. a delault on g fmancil assel 15 considered when the counter parts Bils 1o make payments sithn the agreed tme period 45 per contrcl. Loss mies rellecting defanlts
are based an aetoal crcdit loss expenenes and considerng differences hetween current and historieal econonug conditions
Assels are written off when there 15 no reasonable expestation of recovers, such as 4 debtor declanng barthrupes ar g brgaton decided agangt the Company. The Compans continiies (o engage with parties whose balanees are
written ol aid atlenpls to enforce repay ment. Recoverics made are recagnised in statement ol profit and loss
Inrespect ol irpde receivables the compan recogmses provision lor lifie ime expested eredit loss
Credit rating Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A Lon Cash and cash equivalents, Other bank balances. loans and deposits and ether financial assets R EL 191403
B Moderie Trode recenvable 43120 TR 07
by Credit risk exposure
Pravision for exnected credit losses
The Compamy provides for expected eredit loss based on 12 month and lifetime expected eredit loss for followmy financral assets -
Muarch 31,2023
Particulurs Estimnted gross) Espected eredit|  Carrying amount net of impairment
carrying amount at default losses provision
Financial assets
Trode receivables L6072 {629 32) 431 20
Cash and equivalonts 1393 31 1493 31
Other bank balances 427 30 - 427 30
Other financial assels R NES - 1K 15

March 31. 2027

Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit|  Carrying amount net of impairment |
enrrying amount at default losses provision|

Financial nssets

Trado receivables 71762 (439 33) I78ar

Cash and equivalenis 204 B8 - 20 o4

Other bank balances LOT0 37 - LO70.37

Dhher (fnancinl assets 37931 - 37030

In respect of trade receivables. the Company considers provision for lifetime expocted eredit lass. Given the nature of business operations, the Compans ‘s tradc recets ables hias moderati eredit risk 1s the Company holds secunity
deposits equivilents ranging from thres 1o siv months rentals, in case of major customers Further listoncal trends indicsie amy shortfall between such depasits held by the Company and amounts due from customers have been
wiluated and provided expected eredit loss

Reconcilintion of loss allowance provision- Tnans and ather Gnancial assets

| Reconcilintion of lass allowance Trade Receivables| Loans Other financial assets
Loss allowanee on March 31, 202 43953 - -
Allowance for expected eredit losstnet) 18907 - -
Loss allowanee on March 31, 2022 (el K] - -
Reconciliation of loss allownnce provision- leuns and other financial assets

Recanciliation of lass allowance Trade Receivables Loans Other financial assets
Logs allowance on March 31. 2020 L38 6l -

Allowanece for expecled eredil lossine) 39S =

Loss allowanes un March 31, 203 | 43433 -
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sturreid)

A ey dir @ lacs, anlexs otherniye

B} Liguidity risk
Prudent bgwdits nsk mangement mphes mamtaiimge suffic
it ol e busimess. the Compas masitais Desbilin m fndi

casth and markit

st avalabn ity wnder commmited laclites

seenrities aned e avaulalnlin of fundimg thraugh an wlegquate amoni of conmitted credit Geshities o meet ohhgations when due Due 1o 1he

Maragement monions rolling farecists of the Company s hquidity positon and easl and eash cguy alents on the basis ol expected cash Nows: The Company takes oo account the hgudit of the markis s which te ity eperales

Matnrities of financial Rubilities**

[l ksl below anabyse the Compans < Sl Ll ities mto relevant nuoni sroupies bised on their contmeiual matunties Gor all el bl

Mareh 31. 2022 Less than | vear 1-5 vear] Maore thun S years Toul
Borrowmys* 3520 BK [ERIETEI 447731 1611065
Lease habilies L4853 11, W i A R4T R 53.302.58
Trade payables 1038 35 - = 1.038,35
Secunty deposity T45 12 RERNIKS 144 74 1.839.49
Capital ereditors 3IM1 34 - - 00,34
Total 7.0%6.12 26.020.55 49.475.04 B82.591.71
FIneludes mierest acerued on borowmgs amounting to Rs 1723 84 lacs

Murch 31,2021 Less than 1 venr 1-5 vear] Mare than 5 vears Tnln[!
Borrowmgs® A TIAY1x) -+ Ko i 4034 069 5194518
Lease liabihnes L4853 (554 47 4074842 54,788,312
Trode pan able Aty S0 . - 606.90
Secunity deposits 572 [RCARTH 43745 2,006,211
Capital creditors 3 - - 31906
Total 6,040.63 51.401.98 51.221,06 109,663.67

“Ineludes intorest acerued on barron mgs amonting to Rs 2909 013 lacs
**Represeint undiscounted values
) Market Risk
Interest rate rish
Linhilities

Intercst rate nisk 15 the nsk that the Gar value or liore eash Mowsof' a financtal imstroment will Aetuate beease of chunges in markel interest rates The company's fixed rate barrowings are camed at amontised cost They are
therefore nol subject (o mlerest cale nsk as defined in Ind AS 107, sinee nether the cprryamg ameount nor the futwre ensh Nows will Quclute because of 3 change m market mterest rats.

The Company monages s mterest rate fisk by having a balanced portfolio ol fived aod vanable rate loans and bormawings Kesping i view of current markel scenprio

Inserest rate rivk expovee
The Compain 's variahle rate borrawing is subjeet 1o mlerost rate. Below o the overall ex

sure of the borrow ing.

Particulars March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Fixed rate borrowings® 19.909.46 4909 46
Total borrowings 19,909.46 50040

* does notinclude £ 4477 31 Jacs (March 312021 2 4.034.64 lacs) being liabifity

al d financizl 1

Semsany

and Rs 1723 88 (March 31, 2021 2 2,999 03 laes) bemg mierest aecrued on bomowing

Profit or loss and equity 15 sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from bormw s as o resull of changes i interest rates Since all the borrow ing are at (rved mie 50 there is no (nlemst fate exposure

il Assets

The campany s fixed deposits and sceunly deposits are carmed at xed rate. Therefore, the sad assets are not subject o microst rate nisk as defined in Ind AS 107 since neither the carrying amount nor the Ture cash lows will

NMuetunte beeause of 4 change 1 market inlerest rates

i
3

2 Capital Management and Gearing Ratio

For the purpose of the Company's capaital manngement 15
=Mantam an optunal capital strucluse to reduce cost of capial

The Compans monitors eapital on the basis af e camv g smount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on (e face of balince sheel

The Compam manayes its capital structure and make adjustmonts o i m the bght of changes m

d andd risk chiar

ol the underlying assels

Gearing ratio

The geanng mbo ot (he end of the reparting penod was as bllons.

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Barrowings (Current & non eorrent mcluding interest acerved bt not paid) 3611065 S1943 18

Less * Cash & Cash equivalents (Note 12) 1.893.31 264 9%

et debt (A) 24207 34 SLATH20

Tatal equity 7.617.17 L5420 18)
Capnal and New Debt (B) 3143451 36,154,021

Gearing Ratio (A/B) 76" 143%:

| Dbt is defined 1s long-term borrowings and short-term borrowings imeluding interest on bomowangs

2 Equity 18 defined as equity share eapital and other equity ncluding reserves and sumplus,

The Campany has been montonng Net deb to Tatal Caputal plus net debt ratio during the vear as againg Net debt o cquis mba monitered i the prevwss vear However, there 1s no change i the overall objectives. policies or
processes [or managing capildl during (he veors ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

(T gpence fes b antentromal{y foft blank)
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cinl statenments for the year ended March 31, 2022

(AI armounty in € lnes, unless otherwise stated)
43 Emplovee benelit obligntions
(A} Provident Nund

(B)

The campary make conttibution 1o provident and other funds This is pest employment beneflt and 15 in the defined berefit plan. The comributions made by the Company towards emplovees provider

fund diringe the vear amounts 1o 2 22 30 laes (previons vear & 190 lacs)

Gratuity plan (non funded)

The company hiss a defined benefit uratuity plan. which is untunded The Company provides for wratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Amendiment Act. 1972 Employees who

are i econtinuous service for a perind of 5 vears are eligihle for

ity The amount of gratuity pavable on retmement/termination is the emplovees lase drmwn basie salary per month computed

proportiomately for |5 days salary multplied for the number of vears of service the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obllgation s 21 71 years (Mareh 31, 2021 23 US years)

Risks nssociated with plan provisions

The company 1 exposed 1o nimber of dgks in the defined benefit plan Most significant risk pertaining to defloed be

Netduary: grenvth rosk

it plan and manaement’s estimation of the impact of these risks are as fllow

The present value of the defined benefit plan hability is calculated by reference 1o the fisture salaries of plan participams An increase in the salury of the plan participants will merease the plan liability

Tinterest rute ik
A decrease in interest rate in future years will merease the plan Lability

Life expectaney risk

The present value of the defined benefil plan liability is caleulated by reference w the best estimate ol monality of plan participants both during and at the end of the emplovment An inerease (n (he life

expectancy of the plan participams will increase the plan liability
Wohedrawerls risk

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrowals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impaet the plan liabiliny

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Bifurcation of projected defined benefit plans obligation at the end of the year in eurrent and non current

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Non-current Current Non-current

Gratuity 046 38 36 46 3728
Movement in the linbility recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Present value of defined benefit obligation a5 at the t of the year 3774 28,17
Current service cost 628 1344
Interest cost 280 195
Actuarial loss/{zain) during the year (347} (17.62)
Benefits paid (3 82) (0 64)
Acquisition adjustment (021} 1244
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 3932 3774
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Deseription Murch 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Current service cost 628 1344
[nterest cost 280 | 95
Amount recognised in the of profit and loss 9,08 15.39
Breakup of Actuarial gainfloss: other comprehensive income
Description March 31. 2022 March 31, 2021
Actuarial (zain)/loss on arsing from change In demoyraphic assumption 2 -
Actuarial (gain)Joss an arising rom change in finencial assumption (3 36) 004
Actuarial (gain)oss on arising from experience adjustment (0.11) {17 58)
Total 13.47) {17.62)
For determination of the gratuity linbility of the pauy. the following principal actuarial assumption were used
Particulirs March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Finaneial Assumptions
Discount rate 7 37%: 6.90%

: For First Year 7%

F 3 50%

uture salary increase 750 Thereifter - 75%

Demographic Assumptions

Retirement age SRI60/62/65/68 SR/G60/62
o 017 -

Mortality rate (100 % of IALM 2012 - [4) (100 %4 of TALM: 2012 - 14) l'_::m Boflalii2012
Withdrawal Rate (%)

Upto 30 years jon 300
From 31 1o <4 vears el ] 200
Abaove 44 years | O 100

0 I

These feveloped by u with the ¢ of'i

prions were [
relevant economic markets and that have Lerms to maturity approximating to the terms of the

ial appraisers Discount factors are determined close to each yenr-end by reférence to government bonds of
related obligation Other assumptions are based on management’s historical experience




Riverin Commercial Developers Limited
Notes 1o the financinl statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(A smonnts in € lies, unless othierwise stated)

Se inalysis for significani prions as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31. 202
Tmpact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 3.3 3T
a) Impaet due to inerease of 11 50 % (3.22) 13 23)
bl Impact due to decrease of 0 50 %, 359 338
Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 39,32 3T
] Topact due w increase of i 30 g 3,60 iol
b} Tmpact due 1o decrease of G 50 %o (3.26) (3 500

ities dine to monality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due 1o these not calculated

ities are rate of increase of persions in pay

. rate of e of penstans before retirement and lifie expectancy are not applicable

The Company expects to contribute 3 12 90 lacs in the next annual reporting period.

Matwrity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

The fallowing payments are expected contributions o the defined benefit plan for future years(Undiscounted)

Year March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 047 04do
Between 2 and 3 years 350 331
Bevond 5 years 170 31 15742

174.28 161.19

(s spetce hes heen mentienmally left Mank
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Riverin Commercial Developers Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

e

2]

46
A
i)

47

Capitalization of The Chanakyn Project

The Company was incorporated for the development and operation of @ commerctal complex with Cinema Hall at the Yashwant Place Commercial Complex land
covering area of 107,639 sqft. The ownership of the land lies with NDMC whereas the Company holds the possession for a period of 30 years starting from the
possession year in 2013, The construction for the project began in 2013. based on favourable arbitranion award dated February 16,2016 and was completed in July
2017, The praject constitutes o mall. ciema hall, restourant and cali.

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent linhilities not provided for:

New Delhi Municipal Council (NDMC) raised a default claim on the Company on account of non-payment of license fees on January 03, 2012, The Company
abtained an interim injunction from the Hon'ble High court of Delhi against the smd demand on the ground that no such amount is payvable as NDMC failed 10
handover clean possession of the lond 10 the Company. The matter went inte arbittation and on February 16, 2016, the arbitration tribunal decided the mater in
favour of the Company stating that the Company is nat liable for any amount 1o NDMC 1ill the completion of the project and commencement commercial aperations
at the multiplex. NDMC filed application before Delhi High Court challenging the arbitration award and the same is pending before Delhi High Court for disposal.
The demand raised by NDMC for license fee as on March 31,2022 45 2 2146931 Incs (March 31, 2021 7 19.524.34 lacs) The Company completed the project and
received Completion Certificate issued by NDMC on July 07, 2017, The Company is paving License Fee to NDMC on repular basis wee £ July 07, 2017 Based an
the legal opinion obtained and favourable arbitration order. the management believes that there will be no economic outflow and henee. no linbility will devolve on
the Company in the said matter. Accordingly, no provision has been made in the financial statements for such amoum(s),

Arrears of fixed cumulative dividend on preference share:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Preference dividend on 5,125,000 0.01% cumulative redeemable preference shares (Quisianding for 12 years) 718 6.66
excluding taxes thereon "
Preference dividend on 56.000 0,01% lative red ble preference shores (O ling for 12 years)
5 - 0.08 0.07
excluding wxes thereon
Preference dividend on 3.415.000 0,01% lative red ble prefi shares (Outstanding for 12 years)
5 478 4.44
excluding taxes thereon
Since the Company is in losses, above lative dividend has not been paid nll date
(i) Commitments
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
1) Estimated amount of contracts on Capital account for Property. plant and equipment E =
i) Estimated amount of contracts on Capital account for lnvestiment property - .
(i) The Company was incorporated on February 6, 2007. The Company d into ¢ fon agry with New Delhi Municipal Council {(NDMC) for a period
of thirty years and has constructed and operating multiplex-cum-eniertainment and commercial complex at Yast Place C ity Centre. New Dethi (the
“Praject™),
For the above project. monthly concession fee payable to NDMC is at the rate of 100 per square feet per month of the total permissible area. This hly fee is

payable to NDMC in advance from construction completion date or the partial completion date, whichever is earlier. The fiee would be enhanced @ 15% after every
three years. The first instalment of the fee was pmid w.e £, Julv 07, 2017 (i.e. from the date of Completion Certificate)

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 (“MSMED Aet, 2006™) s as under:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
3 = ; 5 = | ; 30.96 18.19
1) the prineipal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting
year;
it) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the .
; : v . Nil Nil
|supplier beyond the appointed day during each aceounting year:
iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but Nil Nil
beyond the appointed day duning the vear) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act: it -
iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year: and il Nil

v) the amount of further interest remaiming due and payable even in the suceeeding years. until such date when
the interest dues as ubove are netually paid to the small enterprise. for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible Nil Nil
expenditure under section 23

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined (o the extent such parties have been wentified on the basis ol
mformation available with the Company




Hiverin Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the Ainancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

48 Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company entered into concession agreement with New Delht Municipal Council {(NDNMC) for o pertod of thirty years and has construeted and operating
nultiplex-gum-entertainment and commercial complex at Yashwant Place Community Centre. New Delhu

The Company also has certain leases of warchouse space / remtal accommodation for its employees with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of affice

equipment with low value. The Company applies the “short-tenn lease” and “lease of low-value assets” recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use asser r

Particulars Land and building
As at April 1, 2021 20,748.00
Additions =
Depreciation expense (947.83)
As at March 31, 2022 19.800.17

Particulars Land and building]|
As at April 1, 2020 21,695.82
Additions -
Depreciation expense (247 82)
As at March 31, 2021 20,748.00

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease linbilities and the movement during the period:

Particulars 31 March 2022
Asat April 1, 2021 16,295.21
Additions -

Accretion of interest 1,895 10
Payments (1.485.44)
As at March 31, 2022 16,704.87
Current 16,245.54
Naon-current 43933
Particulars 31 March 2021
As at April 1, 2020 13.882.33
Additions -

Aceretion of interest 1.849.88
Payments {1.437.00)
As nt March 31, 2021 16,295.21
Current 15.885.55
Non-current 409,66

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 41,
The effective interest rate for lease Labilities 15 11.5

0y

The following are the amounts recognised in profic or loss:

o, with maturity in February 2043,

Particulars

31 March 2022

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 783
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1.895.10
Expense relating to short-term leases (inclided in ather expenses) 456
Expense relatmg to short-term leases (included in staff welfare) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 284749
The following are the recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars 31 March 2021

Depreciation expense of right-ol-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Expense relating to short-term leases {ineluded m other expenses)
Expense relating to short-term leases {included in stafl welfare)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

947,82

| .849.88
4.56
249

during the period:

2,804.75

Ihe Company had total cash outflows for leases of T L4834 acs i March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021 7 1437.00 lacs). The Company also had non-cash addiirons
to nght-ol-use nssets and lease labilines of # NIL (March 31, 2021 2 NIL) lacs and 2 NIL (March 31, 2021 2 NIL) laies respectively in the year ended March 31

20522

The Company has wken leased asset under non-cancellable operating leases
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[he contractupl fiature minimum lease pavment in respect of these leases as a1 March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are-

Particulirs March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Lpto one year 1.48543 148543
Twa to five year 6,969 46 6.55447
More than five years 44.847.99 46.748.42
Tatal 53,302.88 5.4,788.32

Company us a lessor
During July 2017, the Company has completed the construction of "The Chanakya”, multiplex-cum-enter and ¢t il complex. at Yashwant Palace

Chonakyapuri, New Delhi, The complex commenced it operations since September 2017, The Company has entered into operating leases on ifs investinent property
portfolio. These leases have terms between | and 18 years. All leases usually include o clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge once in three years
according to prevailing market conditions. Rental income recogmised by the Company during the year is # 3,554, 24 lues (Mareh 31, 2021: 2 3.008,03 lacs),

Future minimum rentals recervables under non-cancellable period of operating leases as at March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Particulars Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Upto one year 2362.15 2,505.50
Twao to five yoar 1.301.09 978.66
More than five years 1.676.78 1.874.02
Total 5.540.02 5,358.18

(Thes space Doy been itentionally left blank)
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Nutes to the financial statements for the yenr ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

49 Related party disclosures
In accordance with Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures” of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the names of reluted parties along with aggresate

amount of transactions and year end balances with them are as follows

i) Related Party relationship :

a) Ultimate holding company
Rajdhani Investments & Agencies Private Limiled

b) Holding companies
DLF Commercial Developers Limited
DLF Home Developers Limited
DLF Limited

¢) Fellow subsidiary companies at any time during the year (with whom there were transactions during the year):
DLF- Projects Limited
DLF Utilities Limited
DLF Property Developers Limited (Formely DLF Emporio Restaurant Limited)
DLF Builders and Developers Private Limited (formerly SC Hospuitality Private Limited)
Lodhi Property Company Limited
DLF Brands Private Limited (Formerly DLF Brands Limited)
DLF Universal Limited

d) Joint venture of holding company at any time during the year (with whom there were transactions during the year):
DLF Power & Services Limited (Joint venture of DLF Limited)
DLF Cyber City Developers Limited (Joint venture of DLF Limited)

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Notes to the fnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al gmounts in T facs, unless otherwise stated)

i) Transaction during the year

—_—_—— e s
Deseription Holding compiny Fellow subsidinries Joini venture of_hoelding company

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021]  March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
9] (%) (%) ) % k4]

Cost of food, beverages and others
Food and lieverapes expenses
DLF Property Developers Limited - - 48.18 2.96 - -

Cost of services
Facilities maintenance expenses
DLF Power & Services Limited - - - - 1.145.49 1.024 26

Other expense
Business support charges
DLF Power & Services Limited - - - - 40.70 36,14

Sales promotion expenses
Lodhi Property Company Lumited - - 8.69 7.50 - -
DLF Builders And Develapers Private Limited - - 047 - - -

Finance cost
Interest Paid
DLF Commereinl Developers Limited |.874.86 323659 - - " -
DLF Home Developers Limited 40,56 80,18 - - - -

Security Deposit Interest Expenses
DLF Universal Limited - - - 16.29 - -

Interest on linbility portion of Preference Shares
DLF Commercial Developers Limited 442,61 398.83 - - - =

Revenue from operations
Rental income

DLF Universal Limited - - 276,40 22091 - %
Rental Straightlining
DLF Universal Limited - - - 534 = S
Secunty Deposit Deferred Income
DLF Universal Limired - - - 16.11 - -

Sale of food and beverages! Rent and Services
DLF Limited 409 4,28 - % e -
DLF Brands Private Linnted 141 0.69 - - - -
DLF Homes Developers Lumited .14 1.32 - - - -
DLF Universal Limited - = 80.50 81.60 - -
DLF Property Developers Limited - - 17.19 326 - -
DLF Golf Resorts Lid - - 2.57 - . ~
DLF Recreational Foundation Ltd - - 192 - - -

Losn taken

DLF Commercial Developers Limited 800.00 6.971.00 - - - %
DLF Home Developers Limited 1. 700.00 103,00 - - - -

Loan repaid
DLF Comunercinl Developers Limited* 27.500.00 -
DLF Home Developers Limited - 4.118.00 - - - )

Bank Guaorantee taken / released (Net)
DLF Lunited 2146 20.74 - - = =

*Issue of 0.01% Optionally Convertible Debentures of T 27,500.00 lacs by way of adjustment of existing unsecured loan (repayable on demnd) taken in earlier years (also
refer note 17A).

86



Riverin Commercial Develupers Limited

Notes to the finnncinl statements for the yeur ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in 2 lacs, unless otherwise stated)

iiii)

a)

b}

cl

Balances at the end of the vear

Deseription Holding company Fellow subsidiaries Joint venture of holding company
Murch 31,2022 March 31,2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Muarch 31,2022 March 31, 2021
) ) () (4] (%) (%)
Trade payables
DILF Power & Services Limited - - - - 33897 101 44

Lodhi Property Company Limited
DLF Builders And Developers Private Limited
DLF Property Developers Limited

Other payables
DLF Limited

Security Depusit
DLF Umversal Limited

Deferred Income
DLF Universal Limited

Trade receivables (including receivables pertaining to revenue
not recognised due to lack of certainty of collection of lease
payments)

DLF Limited

DLF Brands Private Limited

DLF Home Developers Limued

DLF Universal Limited

DLF Property Developers Limted

DLF Recreational Foundation Lid

Unbilled Receivable
DLF Universal Limited

Interest accrued but not due
DLF Commercial Developers Limited
DLF Home Developers Limied

Unsecured loan
DLF Commercial Developers Limited
DLF Home Developers Limited

Equity share capital
DLF Commercial Developers Limited

Equity portion of Preference share
DLF Commercial Developers Limited

Liability portion Preference share capital
DLF Commercial Developers Limited

Bank gunrantees taken

DLF Limited

1,68557
36 50

18.106 46
1.803 00

500

5,568 27

4477 31

148543

359

123
329
0351

2,993 84
519

44,806 46
103 00

5.00

3.568 27

4,034 69

148545

tad

= —
e L
-

17831

1196

16331

1176

1 35
12,74

1734

02

Terms and conditions with related parties:

The bank guarantee 1ssued i favour of NDMC by DLF Limited, the halding compuny on behalf of the Company amounting to 2 | 485 43 lacs. The guarantee will remum n force upto August 07,

2022 and cannot be mvoked otherwise than by a written demand under this guarantee served on bank on or before the mentioned date

Sale/Purchase terms and conditions:

The sales to and purchoses from related parties are made on Lerms equivalent (o these that prevail in arm’s length transactions Outstanding balances at the vear-end are unseeured and mterest free

and settlement oceurs by RTGS/NEFT

Outstanding balances at the vear-end are unsecured and mrerest free and settlement occurs in cash For the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has not recorded any impaimment of
recervables relatng to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2021 Nil) This assessment is undertaken each finaneial year through examining the financal position of the related party and

the market m which the related party operates

Loan from holding Company

The Company has taken loan from DLF Commercial Developérs Limited which is unsecured and repayable on demand after 2022 which carries an interest rate of 7 5% per annum (March 31,
2021 7 5% per annum). The unsecured loan received from DLF Home Developers Limited 15 repayable on demand and carry mterest (@ 7 5% per annum (March 31,2021 7 5% per annum) The
loans have been uttlised by the Company for meeting the working capital requirements and expenditure meurred upon mvestment property and property plant and equipment
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Motes to the linancial stntements for the year ended March 31, 2027
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S0 The Company 15 n the business of leasing and mantenance of 2 shopping mall, revepue penaning to which, anses from underbving lease agreements
The Camg has d the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relatng to COVID-19 on the carying smounts of investment properties, investment property under
du\rlopmml. receivables mdul.lmg unbilled recervables, contract assets, investments and other assetss Lubilities based on vanous internal and external factors upto the date of approval
of fi ' The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the prions used {in ltation with ‘s expert valuers) and based on current estimates.
expects that the carmving amount ol'thl:se aseets will be recovered  Further. the has made of impact on busi and fi | nsks on of COVID-19

Basts abune, management has estimated s future cash Hows for the Company which indicates no major change in medium 1o long term fi I perfr as i prar 10
COVID-19 impact and hence, the Company believes that there 15 no unpact on s abulity 1 continue 45 going concem and meeting s liabiliies as and when they fall due However,
due te the unpredictable nature of the ongoing pandemic, the impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial may differ from that esnmated as at the date of 2pproval of
these financial statements

51 Dunng the current vear, the Company has charged the © Arez M (CAM") revenue (ncluded under the head “Revenue from Opembons™) from tenants on
provisianal hasis, based on 'z esii of cost i d Hi . post the year-end, the Company will gbiain an independem party certifi of acal expendi
incurred owards maintenance charges for the year ended March 31,2022 The management believes thut ao material adjustments will anse in CAM revenue which will affea the
current penod Mnancial statemaents

52 Ind AS 1106 "Leases” require the lessors to for modifications 10 op i3 leases as new Tease from the effective date of modification, considenng any prepuid on acerued lease
iy lating to the original levse as pant of the |ease payments for the new lease
Duriing the previous year, owing o impact of COVID-19 un the Company's operations and its renants’ busi of retail operation, the Company has entered into sddendums to leaze

agresments with certain tenants whensin it bas agreed revised reduced mtes of rentals for the financizl year then ended with thess tenants, and thus, the revenue for the previous year is
reduced accordingly The Company his sccounted the sume as per the sbove provision of Ind AS 116

During the year, there is no such modificatons to feases, and thus, no reduction from revenue have been made during the fnancial year
The management befieves that no further adjustment is required 1o be made in these financial statements in this regard

53 Other stalotory information:

{1 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initisted or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1948 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder

{11} The Company dees not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013
(iit) The Company does nor have any chirges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyand the statutory peried

(1v] The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virmual Cumency during the financial year

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invesied funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Inermediaries) with the unds fing thar the
Intermediary shall:
(a] directly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehulf of the company (Ult Beneficranes) or
(b) provide any gusrantee, security er the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(v} The Company has not recerved any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foresgn entities (Funding Party) with the under ling {wheth led in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall
(a} directly or indirectly lend or tvest in other persons or entities wentified 1n any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, sceurity or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

{vii} The Company does not have any such transsction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income dunng the year in the tax
under the Inc tax Act. 1961 (such as, search or survey or ay other rel provisiens of the § e-nx Act, 19610

54 The figures of the cortesponding presious vear have been reclassified’ ramouped, wherever considered necessary, to make them comparable with current vear classification

A% per our report af even date
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Chartered Accountants Riveriz Commercial Dey
Al Firm cysigyon Number 301003EEIHUOS

P

< L
per Yaday ljeet Sigah Prashant Gauray Gupta
Parmer Direcise i Director
Membership Numbuer S017353 BN 07136200 L sh DIN 07951272
) Auusd?
saku ™ Vabestwart Shl‘cya:u Srivastava
Ot wapig Oifice Company Secremry
MNO ASOIT
Plage  Gragizm Fave Lammuranm P
Dare May |6 222 aare May 1A 2002 \

88





